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ffi PALMYRA BOARD OF EDUCATION
PALMYRA, N.J. 08065

Brian J. McBride
S uperintendenf of Schoo/s

Administrative Office
301 Delaware Avenue

856-786-9300
FAX: 856-829-9638

William Blatchley
Busrness Admini strator/

Board Secretary

1. Reportine Bntitv and Its Services

The Palmyra Borough Board of Education is an independent reporting entity within the criteria
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as established by NCGA
Statement No. 3. All funds of the District are included in this report. The Palmyra Borough Board of
Education and all of its schools constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a wide range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through
12. These include regular, vocational, special area enrichment as well as special education programs
for children with "special needs" including "gifted" and "learning disabled". The District completed
the 2017-2018 fiscal year with an average enrollment of 890 students.

Economic Condition and Outlook:

Palmyra is a residential community that has a total of I.92 square miles and is located on the East side of
the Delaware River directly across from the northern end of the City of Philadelphia. It serves as the
eastern terminus of the Tacony-Palmyra Bridge, which spans the Delaware River. It is readily accessible to
many major highways including Route #73, Route #I-295, Route #130 and the New Jersey Tumpike.
Route #130 and Route #73 are direct access routestoPhiladelphia. Conrail and NewJerseyTransit
have a train station in Palmyra and runs through the heart of the Borough's business district. The
Palmyra School District is a three building district, which is located on the Delaware River in close
proximity to Philadelphia and Trenton.

3. Maior Initiatives:

Increased the number of Mimio boards, Chromebooks, and other electronic hardware to specifically
support new curriculum and classroom initiatives.

Restructured classroom sections to maximize resorrrces while expanding services for students with
learning disabilities.

Approved the establishment of Palmyra Middle School to be fully established for students in grades 6-8

within the Palmyra High School building effective for the 2019-2020 school year.

Continued to increase student access to technology over the prior year through new web based

applications and by increasing the total mrmber of web accessible devices and workstations.

)
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Maior Initiatives (Contf d):

Expanded digital bandwidth in the elementary school building along with upgrades to the server and
wireless access points.

Added new curriculum and/or textbooks in the areas of science, history, English, Tomortow's
Teachers, pre-algebra, STEAM and AP Primer. Additionally, secondary sources such as Newsela
were added to Charles Street School.

Updated facilities to include 50 additional lockers at PHS, biology lab refresh at PHS, lavatory rehab
in four locations at PHS, and computer lab rehab in fwo classrooms at PHS. Converted the art room
to a STEAM room at CSS.

Internal Accounting Controls:

The Administration of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure. lt is designated to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or
misuse. lt also ensures that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with General Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by administration.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensuring compliance with applicable
laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to
periodic evaluation by the District Administration.

As part of the District's single audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control
sfructure, including that portion related to federal awards and state financial assistance programs, as

well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

Budgetarv Controls:

In addition to internal controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these
budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated
budgets and adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project
length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund.
The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

4.

3.
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5. Budsetarv Controls (Cont'd):

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line
item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either cancelled or are included as re-appropriations
of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as

assignments of fund balances as of June 30, 2018.

AccountÍng Svstems and Reports:

The District accounting records reflect Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, as promulgated by
the GASB. The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are
explained in the "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note l.

Debt Administration:

At June 30, 2018, the District's outstanding debt issues included $400,000 of Series 2009 school
district bonds and $7.860.000 of Series 2016 school refundins bonds.

8. Cash Management:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statue as detailed in "Notes to the
Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan which requires it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.
The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in
New Jersey, where funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

9. Risk Manasement:

The Board of Education carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general
liability, automobile liability and comprehensive collision, hazard and theft insurance on property,
contents and fidelitv bonds.

10. Other Information:

Independent Audit - State statues require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants
or registered municipal accountants. The Board of Education, at its rcorganization meeting, appointed
the accounting firm of Nightlinger, Colavita & Volpa, PA. In addition to meeting the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Untform Admínistrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and State of New
Jersey Circular l5-08-0M8, Single Audit Policyfor Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants
and State Aíd, the auditor's report on the general-purpose financial statements and individual fund
statements and schedules are included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's report
related specifically to the single audit is included in the single audit section of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORIS REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Palmyra Borough School District
County of Burlington, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the
Palmyra Borough School District in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Palmyra
Borough School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Administration and Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Palmyra Borough Board of Education in the County of Burlington, State of
New Jersey, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supp lementary Inþrmation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedules related to accounting and reporting for
pensions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic f,inancial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Palmyra Borough School Board of Education's basic f,rnancial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual non-major fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures
of federal awards and state financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08, Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining and individual non-major fund f,rnancial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic f,rnancial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the
schedule of expenditlrres of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

NIGHTLINGE& COLAVITA & VOLPA A Professionøl AssocÍatìon C e rtífi e d P a b I ic Ac c ou nta nt s



-10-

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditinq Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated January 3I,2019 on our
consideration of the Borough of Palmyra Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agleements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Borough of Palmyra Board of Education's of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governments Auditing Standards in
considering Borough of Palmyra Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

NIGIIT INGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA, P.A.

Licensed Public School Accountant
No.915

January 31,2019

Colavita, C.P.A. ,IR.M.A.

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA A P r ofe s s i o nø I A s s o ciat ío n Certifi ed Public Accountønts
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BOROUGH OF'PALMYRA BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2018

This section of the Borough of Palmyra Board of Education School District annual financial report presents

our discussion and analysis of the School District's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on
June 30, 2018. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the School
District's financial statements, which immediately follows this section.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information
specified in the Governmental Accounting Standard Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34- Basic Financial
Statements- and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments issued in June

1999. Certain comparative information between the current year (2017-18) and the prior year (2016-17) is
required to be presented in the MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGTITS

Key financial highlights for the 2017-18 fiscal year include the following:

. Net Position for Governmental and Business-Type activities were $1,806,709 and$494,259,respectively.

. Net Position for the Governmental activities increased by 5545,474 and the Net Position for Business-Type
activities increased by $39,465 from July I,2017 to June 30, 20i 8.

. The General Fund, fund balance as of June 30, 2018 was $3,670,221, an increase of $306,200 when compared
with the beginning balance as of July I,2077 of 53,364,021.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of the annual report consists of four parts - Independent Auditor's Report, required
supplementary information which includes the management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of
statements that present different views of the Borough of Palmyra School District.

. The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term
information about the Borough of Palmyra School District's overall financial status.

. The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the Borough of
Palmyra School District, reporting the Borough of Palmyra School District's operation in mgre detail than the
School Govemment-wide statements.

. The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as regular and special education were
financed in short term as well as what remains for future spending.

. Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the activities that the
Borough of Palmyra School District operates like businesses.

. Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the School District
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom the resources belong.



-12-

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide
more detailed data. Table A-1 summarizes the major features of the Borough of Palmyra School District's
financial statements, including the portion of the School District's activities they cover and the types of
information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of management's discussion and analysis
highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Table A-1

M{.TOR F'RATTIRF'S OT'THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND F'UND FTNANCIAI,
STATEMENTS

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide
Statements

Govemmental Funds Proprietary Funds

Scope Entire School District
(except fiduciary
funds)

The activities of the
School District that are
not proprietary or
fiduciary, such as regular
and special education,
building maintenance
and
transnortation

Activities the School
District operates similar
to private businesses:
Food Service Fund, After
School Program

Required Financial
Statements

Statement of Net Positron Balance Sheet Statement of Net Position

Statement of Activities
Statement of Revenues
Expenditures and
Chanses
in Fuñd Balances

statement oI Kevenues,
Exoenses and Changes in
Fund Net Position -

Statement ot Uash .blows

Accounting Basis
and measurement
focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Modified accrual
accounting and current
financial focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Type of
asselliability
information

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
short-term and long-
term

Generally assets

expected to be used up
and liabilities that come
due during the year or
soon thereafter; no
capital assets or long-
term
liabilities included

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
and short-term and
lone- term

Type of
inflodoutflow
information

All revenues and
expenses during year,
regardless ofwhen cash

is received or paid

Revenues for which
cash is received during
or soon after the end of
the year; expenditures
when goods or services
have been received and
the related
liability is due and
oavable

All revenue and
expenses during the
year, regardless of when
cash is received or paid

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements repof information about the Borough of Palmyra School District as a whole
using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position
includes all of the School District's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.
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The two government-wide statements report the Borough of Palmyra School District's net position and how
they have changed. Net position - the difference between the School District's assets and deferred outflows
of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources - are a measure of the School District's
financial health or position.

. Over time, increases or decreases in the School District's net position are an indicator of whether
the financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

. To assess the overall health of the School District you need to consider additional non-financial
factors such as changes in the School District's property tax base and the condition of school
buildings and other facilities.

Ír the government-wide financial statements the School District's activities are shown in two categories:

. Governmental activilies- Most of the School District's basic services are included here, such as

regular and special education, transportation, administration, and maintenance. Aid from the State
of New Jersey and from the Federal government along with local property taxes finances most of
these activities.

. Business-type activities-The School District charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of
certain services it provides. The School District's Food Service Program and After School Program
are included here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the School District's funds -
focusing on the most significant or "major" funds - not the School District as a whole. Funds are accounting
devices the School District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular
programs:

. Some funds are required by State law and by bondcovenants.

. The School District uses other firnds, established in accordance with the State of New Jersey

Uniform Chart of Accounts, to control and manage money for particular purposes (e.g., repaying its
long-term debts) or to show that it is properly using certain revenues (e.g., federal funds).

The School District has three kinds of funds:

. Governmental funds - Most of the School District's basic services are included in governmental
funds, which generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that
helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the School District's programs. Because this information does not encompass the
additional long-term focus of the govemmental-wide statements, we provide additional information
at the bottom of the governmental funds statements that explain the relationship (or differences)
betweenthem.

. Proprietary funds - Services for which the School District charges a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the government-wide
statements.
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. Fiduciary funds - The School District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others.
The School District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only
for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. All of the School District's
fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of
changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the government-wide financial
statements because the School District cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE BOROUGH OF PALMYR-A. SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A
WHOLE

Net Position. The School District's net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2077 and 2018 are
reflected in the followins table.

NETPOSITION

Govemmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total

Assets

Cunent and Other Assets

Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt

Restricted

Unrestricted (Defrcit)

Total Net Position

2018

711\))5
I 1,030,078

3,409,525

n,756,997

487,578 $

17,212

20t7 2018 2017 201 8 2017

438,561 S 4,202,803 $ 3,848,086

19,186 11,047,290 11,776,183

14,745,303 t5,166,522 504,790 457,747 15,250,093 15,624,269

I,860,658 2,278,373 1,860,658 2,279,373

4)5 7q4

13,300,395

284,299

15,533,264

10,53 I ) a\) 435,925 287,251

13,300,395 15,533,264

13,725,789 15,817,563 10,53 I ) q5) 13,736J20 15,820,515

7,073,463 366,097 1,073,463 366,09'l

? 54? ?51

3,649,029

(4,385,670)

1,769,219

3,159,870

(3,667,853)

17,212

477,047

19,1 86

435,608

2,560,563 1,',188,404

3,649,028 3,159,870

(3,908,623) (3,232,245)

$ 1,806,709 $ 1,261,235 $ 494,2s95 454,794 $ 2,300,9685 t,716,029

The School District's flrnancial position for governmental and business-type activities is the product of the
following factors:

. Program revenues were $6,601,422.r' Operating Grants & Contributions - $4,849,682.
'/ Charges for Services - 5I,751,740.

. General revenues amounted to $17,106,089.

. Expenditures were $23,017,044.

. Total School District revenues and beginning assets are adjusted by net adjusted expenditures
resulting in a calculation of net position of $2,300,968 as of June 30, 2018:

Revenues ($17,106,089) + Beginning net position (51,716,029) - Net expenditures
($16,409,622) - Fixed Asset Adjustment ($111,528): Net Position of $2,300,968
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Changes in Net Position - Net position for govemmental and business-type activities increased from
June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018 as reflected in the following table.

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental

Activities
Business-Type

Activities Total

201 8 2017

1,103,457

5,304,567

9,900,903

5,097,356

t37,406

2018 201',l 2018 2017

Revenues:

Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions

General Revenues:

Property Taxes

Grants and Contributions

Other

Total Revenues

Expenses

Instruction

Support Services

Interest on Debt and Related Costs

Childcare

Food Services

Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

Fixed Asset Adjustment

Net Position, July I

Net Position, June 30

23,152,003 21,543,689 555,508 552,438

1,438,398

4,611,312

10,223,639

6,749,597

129,05',7

s 313,342

238,370

3,796

315,190 $

237,138

1,751,',l40

4,949,682

10,223,639

6,749,597

r32,853

1,419,64',1

5,541,705

g,goo,g03

5,097,356

137,516110

23,70',1,511 22,096,127

6,596,699 6,735,939

15,463,493 14,014,949

434,809 298,544

144,562

371,481

132,724

371,310

6,596,699

1,5,463,493

¿?4 R0q

1 44 56)

371,481

6 7?5 Rlq

14,014,848

)q9, \44

132,724

371,310

22,495,001 21,049,23r 516,043 504,034 23,071,0M 21,553,265

657,002

(1 I 1,528)

1,261,235

494,458

'766,777

39,465

A\A.1gd

48,404 696,467 542,862

(1 1 1,528)

1,716,029 7,173,167406,390

$ 1,806,709 S 1,261,235 S 494,259 6 454,794 $ 2,300,968 S 1,716,029

Total revenues for the School District were $23,707,511. Government funding was the source of 48.9% of the
School District's revenues. This includes the State of New Jersey and Federal sources.

Property taxes of $ l0 ,223,639 provided 43.1% of revenues. Charges for services provided 7 .4o/o of revenues.

Other miscellaneous revenues of 9129,057 represent 0.6%o of the School District revenues. Miscellaneous
revenue was primarily provided from interest, refunds and athletic sales.

The School District's expenses for government activities are predominantly related to instruction and support
services. Instruction and tuition totaled 57,892,670 (35.I%) of total expenditures. Student and instruction
related support services totaled 51,752,793 (7.8%) of total expenditures and transportation, benefits, plant
operations and general, school and business administrative services totaled 910,757,947 (55.2%).Interest on
long-term debt totaled $434,809 (1.9%). Total revenues exceeded expenditures for govemmental activities,
increasing net position by 5657 ,002 from the beginriing balance at July l, nI7.
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Activitv DescrÍptions

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction
between teacher and student.

Tuition expenses include the cost to the School District to send pupils with special needs living within the
School District to private schools and/or schools outside the School District area.

Student and instruction related services include the activities designed to assess and improve the well
being of students and to supplement the teaching process.

School Administrative and General and Business Administrative services include expenses associated

with establishing and administering policy for the School District including financial supervision.

Plant operation and maintenance of plant activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and
equipment in a safe and effective working condition.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as

well as to and from student activities as provided bv State law and Board Policy.

Unallocated benefïts includes the cost of benefits for the School District staff for social security,
retirement contributions, worker's compensation, health benefits, pension expense and other employee
benefits.

Interest on long-term debt and amortization of bond issuance costs involve the transactions associated

with the payment of interest and other related charges to the debt of the School District.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S FI.INDS

The financial performance of the Borough of Palmyra School District as a whole is also reflected in the
govemmental funds which are accounted for by using the modified accrual basis of accounting. As the
School District completed the year, its govemmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$3,695,225. At June 30, 2018 the general fund balance was $3,670,22I and the debt service fund balance
was $25,004.

All govemmental funds had total revenues of $19,535,590 and total expenditures of $19,229,891.

GENERAL FT]ND BTIDGETING HIGHLIGHTS

The School District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Fund.

The General Fund includes the primary operations of the School District in providing educational services

to students from pre-kindergarten tbrough gade 12 including pupil transportation activities and capital
outlayprojects.



-t7 -

The following schedule presents a summary of Governmental Fund Revenues. The summary
reflects the dollar and percent increase (decrease) from the prior year.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS COMPARISON OF REVENUES
FOR THE FISCÄL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

Increase oá oflncrease
(Decrease) (Decrease)

Reveneues:

Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy
Miscellaneous

Total tl,79rp94 tl,164,t66 626.928

2018 2017

$ 10223,639 $
r,s67 Ass

9,900,903 $

1263263
322,736

304,t92
3.26yo

24.08Yo

5.620/0

4.77Yo

-0.34yo

4.38o/o

5.12o/o

Government Sources:

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total

Total Revenues $

7,744496 7419,702 324,794

19,535,590 $ 18,583,868 $ 951,722

7,175,737

s68,759

6,848984
570,718

?)6'7<1

(1,ese)

One of the primary sources of funding for the School District is received from local property taxes and
accounted for 52.3To of total revenues. State aid accounted for 36.70/o of total revenues.

Total Governmental Fund revenues increased by $324,794, or 4.38%o, from the previous year. The major
component of this increase was an increase in taxes and state sources.

The following schedule presents a sunìmary of Governmental Fund expenditures. The summary reflects
the dollar and percent increases (decreases) from the prior year.

C,OVE,RNM E NTAL FUND S CO M PARISO N OF E)(PE ND ITURES
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

Percent of
Increase Increase

2018 2Ol7 (Decrease) (Decrease)

E:penditures
úrstruction

Regular
Special Education
Other

Total Instruction

Support Services
Tuition
Student and Instruction Related Services
School Administration
GeneraVBus ines s Administration
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Unallocated Benefits
TPAF and FICA Reimbursements

Total Support Services

Capital Outlay

Debt Service

Total Ependitures

6,570,672 6,693,795 (122,523)

to,586,617 631,098

t62,4r3 60,176

r,218,975 t,263,M4 (44,069)

$ 4,406,s08 $
t,6rs,646

s48,518

4,348,615 S 57,893
1,6t7,712 (2,066)
726,868 (178,350)

1,295,971

t,744,009
420,764

689,s08
7,439,696

397,385
3,120,209
2,110,173

1,380,458
1,575,495

386,961
797,826

r,441,720
370,634

2,870,914
t,768,609

(84,487)
768,574
33,803

(102,318)
(2,O24)

26,7s7
)4q )o<

341,564

7.33%;o

-0.l3Yo
-24.54Yo

-l.83Yo

-6.12V"
1O.7OYo

8.74Yo

-12.92Y"
-o.l4yo
7.22y"
8.68Y"

19.3tyo

5.96Yo

37.Olo/o

-3.49y"

2.80Yo

11,217,715

)t) <tq

s sro,uu19,229,89r $ 18,705,269
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Total Govemmental Fund expenditures increased 5524,622 or 2.8%o from the previous year. This increase was
primarily due to an increase in TPAF and FICA reimbursements, capital outlays, student and instruction
related services and pupil transportation.

The Borough of Palmyra School District values its fund balances as a vehicle for addressing unbudgeted and
emergent needs that occur during the school year.

During the course of f,rscal year 2018 the School District modified the General Fund Budget as needed to
ensure no line item was projected to be over-expended.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

The current year obligations for payment of debt service principal and interest amounted to $1,218,975 where
funding was provided by the local tax levy and Debt Service Aid.

FOOD SERVICE PROPRIETARY FUND

The Food Service Fund's net position was $188,018 as of June 30, 2018. This reflects an increase of $33,035
from Jwre 30,2077.

AFTBR SCHOOL PROGRAM PROPRIETARY FUND

The After School Program Fund's net position was $306,241 as of June 30, 2018. This reflects an increase of
S6,430 from June 30,2017.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

Capital Assets are individual items purchased at a cost exceeding $2,000, have an extended useful life of one
year or more and maintain their identity and structure when placed into service.

At the end of 2018, the School District had capital assets allocated to government activities with a net book
value of
S11,030,078. This consists of abroad range of capital assets, including land, land improvements, buildings
and improvements, and furniture, fixtures and equipment. Total depreciation expense for the year was

$656,915.

CAPITAT ASSETS (NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION)

Govemmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total

Land

Building and Improvements

Fumiture, Fixtures and Equipnent

Total

2018 2017

$ 46,066 $ 46,066 $

10,758,374 11,380,196

225,638 330,734

2018 2017

q

17,212 19,186

2018 2017

$ 46,066 $ 46,066

10,758,374 11,380,196

242,850 349,920

$ tt,oro,* $ ttffi s nLo $ tn,* $ ttru $ trJruw
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Debt Administration - Long-term Obligations

At ñscal year-end, the School District had S8,260,000 in general obligation bonds outstanding, a decrease of
$905,000 from last fiscal year. This reduction was due to payment of principal as well as a refunding of the
2006 and 2009 outstanding debt. The refunding provided for a net savings over the next ten fiscal years of
$437,679. The School District does not anticipate incurring any nerv long-term debt at this time.

The School District also had a $268,450 liability for compensated absences allocated to government activities.
This liability represents the School District's contractual obligation to compensate employees for accumulated
unused sick and vacation leave entitlements upon retirement.

The School District's proportionate share of net pension liability was $4,017,458.

SCIIEDULE OF LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS

2018 2017

Increase
(Decrease)

s (905,000)

(62,292)

Percent

Change

-9.87%
-7.57%

Bonds Payable

Add: Issuance Premium

Total Bonds Payable

Net Pension Liability
Compensated Absences

Total

9,020,487 9,987,779

4,071,458 4,979,985
268,450 565,500

(967,292)

(968,527) -r9.4s%
(297,0s0) -52.s3%

8,260,000
760,487

9,165,000
822,779

$_ rrffi s ,t,ttt2* $ Qfrrßq -14.37%

THE FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Borough of Palmyra School District is presently in a stable financial position.

The School District has done a commendable job managing the budget through changing state
regulations, unfunded mandates and the high turnover rate among senior staff The over reliance on
fund balances in prior years and the level of property tax support for the School District has been
stabilized. The School District remains committed to serving students and taxpayers and it continues
to strive for an exceptional program and a stable tax rate.

The School District's system for financial planning, budgeting and internal controls are continually
reviewed in an effort to align routine operational processes with the continually changing educational
demands as well as those demands imposed upon the School District by outside authorities having
jurisdiction. The School District is committed to continuing its sound fiscal management to meet the
challenges of the futwe.

CONTACTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the School District's f,rnances and to demonstrate the School
District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional financial information, contact the School Business Administrator/Board Secretary at:

Borough of Palmyra Board of Education, 301 Delaware Ave., Palmyra, New Jersey 08065.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



DISTRICT \MIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the
District.
These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary
activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimizefhe double-counting of internal activities. These
statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
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BOROUGH OF PALIVTYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Governmental

Activities
Business-Tlpe

Activities

Exhibit A-1

Total
ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables, Net
Inventory
Capital Assets, Net (Note 6)

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferred Loss on Refunding
Related to Pensions (Note 9)

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable:

Related to Pensions

Interfund Payable

Accrued Interest

Unearned Revenue

Noncurrent Liabilities (Note 7):

Due within One Year
Due beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Related to Pensions (Note 9)

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted for:
Debt Service

Capital Projects

Maintenance Reserve

Other Purposes

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

$ 3,461,383

253,942

I 1,030,079

s 463,455

12,563

11,560

17,212

3,924,838

266,405

11,560

11,047,290

14,745,303 504,790 15,250,093

533,760

I,326,898
533,760

1,326,898

1,860,658 1,860,658

161,331

20,000

244,063

932,532

12,367,963

10,531

161,331

20,000

244,063

10,531

932,532

12,367,863

13,725,799 10,531 13,736,320

1,073,463 1,073,463

2,543,351

25,004

948,572

998,001

1,677,451

(4,385,670)

17,2r2

477,047

2,560,563

25,004

949,572

998,001

r,677,45r
(3,908,623)

1,806,709 494,259

The accompanylng Notes to Financial Statements ate an integral part of this statement.

2,300,968



Functions / Programs

Govemrnental Activities :

Instruction:

Regular
Special Education

Other Special Instruction
Support Services:

Tuition
Student and lnstruction Related Services

School Administrative Services

General and Business Administrative Services

Plant Operations and Maintenance

Pupil Transportation

Unallocated Benefits
Interest on Long-Term Debt

Total Govemmental Activities

Business-Type Activities :

Food Service

After School Program

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Govemment

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Property Taxes, lævied for General Purposes, net

Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service

Federal and State Aid not Restricted

Miscellaneous Income

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position

Fixed Asset Adjustrnent

Net Position - July 1

Net Position - June 30
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201 8

Expenses

g 4,432,535
1,615,646

548,s I 8

1,295,971

1,752,793

423,498

690,026
) )10 \\)

397,385

8,664,268
434,809

22,495,001

Operating

Charges for Grants and

Services Contributions

Program Revenues

$ 1,438,398

s

Capital

Grants and

Contributions

371,481 164,881

144,562 148,461

465,665

77,485

516,043 313342 238,370

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

1,438,398 4,611,312

Govemmental
Activities

s (2,994,137)
(1,149,981)

(548,s 1 8)

(1,29s,971)

(1,675,308)

(423,498)

(690,026)

(2,239,ss2)
(397,385)

(4,s96,106)
(434,809)

(16,44s,291)

4,068,162

Exhibit A-2

Business-Type

Activities Total

238,370

$ (2,994,t37)
( l,149,981)

(548,s l 8)

(1,29s,971)

(r,67s,308)
(423,498)
(690,026)

(2,239,ss2)

(397,385)

(4,s96,106)

(434,809)

(16,445,291)

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part ofthis statement.

(16,44s,291)

31,770 31,770
3,899 3,899

3s,669

9,1 8 1,593

1,042,046

6,749,s97

129,057

17,102,293

35,669

6s7,002

(l l 1,s28)

t,261,235

3,796

3,796

(16,409,622)

9,18 1,593

1,042,046

6,749,597

r32,8s3

17.106.089

1,806,709

39,465

454,794

494,2s9

696,46',7

(l l 1,s28)

1,716,029

$ 2,300,968



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund statements and schedules present more detailed information for the
individual fund in a forma|that segregates information by fund.



GOVERNMBNTAL FUNDS



ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables, net:

Interfunds Receivable:

Special Revenue Fund

Payroll Fund

Receivables from Other Govemments:

State Sources

Federal Sources

Other Receivables

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FLTND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

I¡terfunds Payable:

Student Activity
General Fund

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Restricted:

Excess Surplus

Excess Surplus - Subsequent Year's Expenditures

Capital Reserve

Maintenance Reserve

Maintenance Reserve - Subsequent Year's Expenditures
Debt Service Fund - Subsequent Year's Expenditures

Assigned:

Subsequent Year's Expenditures

Unassigned (Defrcit)

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

aa

BOROUGH OF PALNTYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Govemmental Funds

Balance Sheet

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201 8

Gener¿l

Fund

$3,436,3',79

36,62r
J

o{ ¿{o

r0r,7 59

o?r rro
746,232

948,572

786,50 I
2l 1,500

65,8'7'7

( l e,680)

3,670,22r

56,621

s3,670,22t $s6,62t $2s,004 $ 3,751,846

Special Debt

Revenue Service

Fund Fund

Exhibit B-l

Total
Govemmental

Funds

$ - $2s,004 s 3,461,383

36,62t
3

9s,4s9
s6,621

t01,7 59

20,000

36,62r
20,000

36,621

56,621 56,621

25,004

931,219

746,232

948,s72

786,50r
21 1,500

25,004

65,87'7

(19,680)

25,004 3,695,225

s3,670,22t $s6,621 $25,004

Amounts ¡eported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost ofthe assets is

922,185,090, and the accumulated depreciation is $1 1,155,012.
l-ong-term liabilities, including bonds payable and compensated absences, are not due and

payable in the cunent period and therefo¡e are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Net Pension Liability
Accounts Payable related to the April 1, 2018 Required PERS pension contribution

that is not to be liquidated with current financial resources.

Deferred Outflows ofResources - Related to Pensions

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Related to Pensions

Deferred loss on defeasance ofdebt is a consumption ofnet position
that is applicable to a future reporting period and therefore is not reported in the funds.

Interest on long term debt is accrued on the Statement ofNet Position regardless when due.

Net Position of Govemmental Activities

11,030,078

(9,288,937)
(4,011,4s8)

(r 61,331)

1,326,898

(r,073,463)

533,760
(244,063)

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part ofthis statement.

$ 1,806,709
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BOROUGH OF PALNTYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

General

Fund

Special

Revenue

Fund

Exhibit B-2

Total

Govemmental
Funds

Debt

Service

Fund
REVENUES:

Local Tax Levy
Tuition and Transportation
Miscellaneous

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Regular lnstruction

Special Education Instruction
Other Special lnstruction

Support Services and Undistributed Costs:

Tuition
Student and Instruction Related Services

School Administrative Services

Other Administrative Services

Plant Operations and Maintenance

Pupil Transportation

Unallocated Benefits
Debt Service:

Principal

Interest and Other Charges

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - July I

Fund Balance - June 30

17,773,966 543, I 50 r,2r9,474 19,535,590

$ 9,181,593

l,43g,3gg
128,057

6,999,30g

26,609

$ 1,000

542,150

s 1,042,046

176,428

s 10,223,639

1,438,399

129,057

7,175,737

568,759

4,406,509

l,r4g,ggl
548,518

l,2g5,g7l
1,666,524

420,764

689,509

1,439,696

397,385

5,230,392

465,665

77,485

905,000

313,975

4,406,509

1,675,646

548,518

l,2g5,g7l
l,744,oog

420,764

689,508

1,439,696

397,385

5,230,392

905,000

313,975

222,529222,529

17,467,766 543, I 50 l,2rg,g75 19,229,891

306,200 (s0r) 305,699

306,200

3,364,021

(s01)

25,505

305,699

3,389,526

$3,670,221 $ - $ 25,004

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

3,695,225



(615,390)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the govemmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement ofnet position and is not reported in the statement ofactivities. 905,000

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities is accrued,
regardless of when due. In the governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The decrease
in accrued interest is an addition in the reconciliation. (+) (139,405)

Govemmental funds report School Disfrict pension contributions as expenditures. However in the statement
of activities, the cost ofpension benefits earned is reported as pension expense. This is the amount by
which pension benefits earned exceeded the School District's pension contributions in the current period. (114,523)

In the Statement of Activities, defened losses on debt refunding are amortized over the life of the debt.
However, in the governmental fund, no expenditures are incurred. 18,571

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement

ofactivities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.

Depreciation Expense

Loss on Disposal of Asset

Capital Outlays

In the statement ofactivities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts eamed during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconciliation (-);when the paid amount
exceeds the eamed amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Change in Net Position of Govemmental Activities

The accompanying Notes to Financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

a^

Exhibit B-3
BOROUGH OF PALTVTYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues. Expenditures.

and Chanqes in Fund Balances of Govemmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

$ 305,699

$ (654,941)

?q 551

29'7,0s0

$ 657,002



PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietarv Funds

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Position
June 30. 2018

Food

Service

After School

Program

Exhibit B-4

Total

ASSETS:

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:

State

Federal

Other

Inventories

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION:
Restricted:

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

157,274

191

9,663

3,709
11,560

306,241 463,455

191

8,663

3,709

1 1,560

18r,337 306,247 487,578

302,584
(285,372)

302,594
(285,372)

17,212 17,272

r98,549 306,241 504,790

10,531 10,531

10,531 10,531

17,212

170,806 306,24r
17,2r2

477,047

306,241188,019 494,259

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BOROUGH OF' PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietary Funds

Business-Twe Activities - Enterprise Funds
Statement of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Exhibit B-5

Total
After School

Program

$ 148,461

Food
Service

OPERATING REVENTIES:

Charges for Services:

Daily Sales:

Non-reimbursable Pro grams

Reimbursable Program -- School Breakfast

Reimbursable Program -- School Lunch
Child Care Fees

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING E)GENSES:
Salaries

Employee Benefits

Management Fee

General Supplies

Direct Expenses

Depreciation

Other Professional and Technical Services

Cost of Sales - Reimbursable Programs

Cost of Sales - Non-reimbursable Programs

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income / (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES :

State Sources:

State School Lunch Prosram
Federal Sources:

National School Lunch Program

National School Breakfast Program

Food Distribution Program

Interest Revenue

Total Nonoperating Revenues

Change in Net Position

Net Position - July I

Net Position -- June 30 $ 188,018 $ 306,24t $ 494,259

70,848

6,637

87,396

70,848

6,637

87,396

t48,46t

164,881 148,461 313,342

126,013
)) Áoa

18,360

14,139

9,010

1,974

3,000

153,152

23,140

85,814

25,000

9,319

24,429

211,827

47,693
18,3 60
)7 45R

9,010

1,974
)1 A)g

t53,152
23,140

371,481 144,562 516,043

(206,600) 3,899 (202,701)

4,293

t65,864
33,502
34,711

1,265 2,53r

4,293

165,864
?? 50?

34,711

3,796

?3q 6?5 2,531 242,166

?? o?s

154,983

6,430

299,811

39,465

454,794

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietary Funds

Business-T]¡pe Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Food

Service

164,881

(18,360)

(t26,013)
(22,693)

(191,726)

(193,91 1)

4,293

234,077

238,370

1,265

45,724

lll,490

157,2I4

(206,600)

1,974

2,260

497

7,958

Exhibit B-6

Total

After School

Program

$ 148,461

(85,814)

(25,000)

(33,828)

313,342

(18,360)

(211,821)

(47,693)

(225,554)

CASH FLOV/S FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from Customers

Pa¡rments to Management Company

Payments to Employees

Payments for Employee Benefits

Payments for Supplies and Services

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCTNG ACTIWTIES:
State Sources

Federal Sources

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-Capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Revenue

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents -- June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used)

by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided by (used for) Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Net Amortization
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable

(Increase) Decrease in Inventories

Increase (Decrease) in Interfund Payable

Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

3,819 (190,092)

4,293

234,077

238,370

2,531 3,796

6,350

299,891

52,074

41 1,381

306,241 463,455

3,899

300

(380)

(202,701)

1,974

2,560

497

7,578

12,689

(193,911) 3,819

(80) t2,609

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

(190,092)



FIDUCIARY FUNDS
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Exhibit B-7
BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30.2018

Private-Purpose

Trust Fund Agency Funds

Unemployment Student

Compensation Activity Payroll

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Interfund Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Interfund Accounts Payable

Payable to Student Groups

Flexible Spending Reserve

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION:

Restricted:

Held in Trust for Payment of Claims

s 158,924 $ 112,997 $ 3,905

20.000

158,924 132,997 3,905

132,997

J

3,902

s 132,997 S 3,905

s 158,924

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements aÍe aîintegral part of this statement.
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciarv Funds

Private-Purpose Trust Fund
Statement of Chanees in Fiduciary Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Exhibit B-8

Unemployment

Compensation

I¡rsurance

Trust Fund

1,205

20,000

15,264

30,766

128,158

ADDITIONS:
Lrterest on Investments

Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions

Total Additions

DELETIONS:
Withdrawals

Change in Net Position

Net Position * July 1

Net Position - June 30

36,469

5,703

r58,924

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements ale an integral part of this statement.
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BOROUGH OF PALVTYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JI]NE 30.2018

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial staternents of the Borough of Pahnyra School District (the "School District") have been
prepared to confonn with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
("GA"{P"; as applied to goverrunental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB")
is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporling
principles. The following is a sunxnary of the more sígnificant of these policies.

Description of the Financial Reporting Entitv

The School District is a Type II district located in the County of Burlington, State of New .Iersey. As a

Type II district, the School District functions independently through a Board of Education (the "Board").
The Boarcl is comprised of nine members elected to three-year terms. These terms are staggered so that
three member's terms expire each year. The Superintenclent is appointecl by the Board to act as executive
officer of the School District. The purpose of the School District is to educate students from Palmyra
Borough in gracles Pre-K through 12 aI its three schools. In addition, high school students frorn the City
of Beverly and the Borough of Riverton attencl Palmyra High School. The School District has an
approximate emolhnent at June 30,2018 of 932.

The primary criterion for inclucling activities within the School District's reporting entity, as set fonh in
Section 2100 of the Governmerfal Accounting Standards Board Codification of Governntental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is the degree of oversight responsibility rnaintained by
the School District. Oversight responsibility includes financial interdependency, selection of governing
authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for
fiscal matters. The combined financial statements include all fuirds of the School District over which the
Board exercises operating control.

Component Units

In evaluating how to define the School District f-or financial reporting purposes, management has
consiclered all potential component units. The decision to include any potential component units in the
financial reporling entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Staternents No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Orgonizations are Contponent Units, GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity:
Onutibus - an amendntent o-f GASB Statem,ents No. 14 and No. 34, and GASB Statement No. 80,
Blending Requirements .þr Certain Component Units - an atnendment of GASB Statement No. 14.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in-substance part of the government's
operations. Each discretely presentecl component unit is reported in a separate column in the
govemment-wide financial statements to emphasize thaf it is legally separate from the government.

The basic-but not the only-criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity
is the governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most sigrificant manifestation of
this ability is financial interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight
responsibility include, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of
management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. A
second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service. Application
of this criterion involves considering whether the activitv benefits the eovemment and/or its citizens.
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THB FISCAL YEAR ENDED JI]NE 30. 2018

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Component Units (Cont'dl

A third criterion used to evaluate potential conrponent units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting
entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the government is able to
exercise oversight responsibilities. Finally, the nature and significance of a potential component unit to
the primary govemrnent coulcl wamant its inclusion within the reporting entity.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the School District has no component units.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The School District's basic financial statements consist of govemment-wide statements, and fund
f,inancial statements which provide a more detailecl level of financial information.

The govemment-wide financial statements (i.e., the staternent of net position and the statement of
activities) report infonnation on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the govemrnent. For the most part,
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Govemmental activities, which
normally are supported by property taxes ancl intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately frorn
business{ype activities, which rely to a signif,rcant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by prograrn revenues. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
selice, program, or clepafiment and, therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function. It is the
policy of the School District to not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities.
Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
frorn goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segnent and (2) grants and
contributions that are reshjcted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
or segment. Properly taxes ancl other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

In regards to the fund financial statements, the School District segregates transactions related to certain
functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial managemerf ancl to demonstrate legal
compliance. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.
Fund financial statements repoft detailecl infonnation about the School District. The focus of
govemrnental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each
major fund is presented in a single column. Ficluciary funds are reported by fund type.

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic tesources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Propefty taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. The Burlington County Board of Taxation is responsible
for the assessment of properties, and the respective municipal tax collector is responsible for the
collection of property taxes. Assessm.ents are certified and property taxes are levied on January 1.



-32-
BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTIIIE 30.2018

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTID)

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Cont'd)

Property tax payments are due February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 . Unpaid property taxes are
considerecl delinquent the following January 1 and are then subject to municipal lien. In accordance with
New Jersey State Statute, the School District is entitled to receive moneys under an established payment
schedule, and any unpaid amount is considered as an accounts receivable. The governing body of each
municipality is required to pay over to the School District, within forty (40) days after the beginning of
the school year, twenty percent (20%) of the moneys from school tax due. Thereafter, but prior to the last
day of the school year, the municipalìty must pay the balance of moneys frorn school tax due for school
purposes in such amounts as requestecl, with certain limitations, frorn time to time by the School District,
within thirty days after each recluest.

Govemmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modifiecl accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when they are deemed both
available and measurable. Available means when revenues are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the School District
considers revenues to be available if they are collectecl within sixty (60) days of the end of the curent
f,rscal year. Measurable means that the arnount of revenue can be determined. Expenclitures genelally are
recorded wheu a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt seryice expenditures,
as well as expenditures relatecl to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only
when payment is clue.

Ploperty taxes, tuition, reimbursable-type grants, and interest associated with the current fiscal year are
all consiclered to be susceptible to accn¡al and so have been recognized as Íevenues ofthe current fiscal
year. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and availal¡le only when cash is received
by the Scliool District.

The School District repoús the following rnajor govemmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the prirnary operating fuircl of the School District. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those recluired to be accounted for in another fund. Included
are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional equipment
classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Deparlment of Education, the School District includes budgeted
capital outlay in tlris fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
as they pertain to govemrnental entities, state that general fund resources may be used to directly
finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived
exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgetecl capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey aid, ad
valorem tax revenues, and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those which result in the
acquisition of or additions to capital assets for lancl, existing buildings, improvements of grounds,
construction of buildings, additions to, or remodeling of buildings, and the purchase of built-in
equipment.

Specíøl Revenue Fund - The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of
specific revenue sources that are restricted or conrmitted to expenditures for specified purposes other
than debt service or capital projects.
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BOROUGH OF PALNTT'RA SCIIOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JLIIIE 30. 2018

NOTE 1: STJMMARY OF SIGNIF.ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Cont'd)

Capital Projects Fund - The capital projects fund is used to account for and repoft financial resources
that are restricted, committecl, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the
acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed by
proprietary funds. The financial resources are derived from New Jersey Economic Development
Authority grants, temporary notes, serial bonds which are specifically authorizedby the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election, ol from the
general fund by way of transfers from capital outlay or the capital reserve account. The School
District does not rnaintain a capital projects fund.

Debt Service Fund - The clebt selice fund is used to account for and report financial resources that
are restricted, comrnittecl, or assigned to expenclitures for principal and interest.

Proprietary funds are used to accouÍìt for the School District's ongoing organizations and activities,
which are operated ancl financed in a manner similar to those found in the private sector. The
measurement focus is upon the detenrrination of net income. Proprietary funds distinguish operating
revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result frorn
providing selvices ancl proclucing ancl delivering goocls in connection with a proprietary fund's principal
ongoing operations. All items not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

The School District reports the following major proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds

Food Service Fund - This funcl accounts for the financial transactions related to the food service
operations of the School District.

After Scltool Fund - This fund accounts for the financial activity relatecl to providing day care
services for School District students after school.

Fiduciary funcls are used to account for assets held by the School District on behalf of outside related
organizations or on behalf of other funds within the School District. The fiduciary fund financial
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incuned,
regardless of the tirning of related cash flows. The fiduciary fund category is split into four
classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds, and agency
funds.

The Scliool District maintains the following fiduciary fuirds:

Agency Funds - Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the School District in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and / or other funds
(i.e., payroll and student activities). The School District retains no equity interest in these funds.
Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations. The School District maintains the following agency funds: student activity fund
and payroll fund.
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FNTANCIAT STA
FOR TIIE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30.2018

NOTE 1: STJIVIMARY OF SIGNIF.ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'DI

Enterprise Funds (Cont'd)

Privøte-Purpose Trust Funds - Private-purpose tmst funds are used to account for the principal and
income for all other trust arrangements that benefit individuals, plivate organizations, or other
governments. The School District maintains the following private-purpose trust fuird:

New Jersev Unemplovment Compensation Jnsurance Trust Fund- Revenues consist of
contributions that have been included in the annual budget of the School District, employee payroll
withholdings, and interest ilcome. Expenditures represent claims incurred for unemployment.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide fìnancial
statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and
contlibutions. Internally declicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revellues inclucle all property taxes.

Budgets / Budgetarv Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each fiscal year for the general, special
revenue, and debt service funds, and are submitted to the county office of education. In accordance with
P.L.20ll, c.202, the School District passed a resolution to rnove the school boarcl election to the first
Tuesday after the first Monday in November, starting in November of 2012, to be held simultaneously
with the general election. As a result, a vote is not required on the School District's general fund tax lely
for the buclget year, other than the general funcl tax levy required to support a proposal for additional
funds, if any. Budgets are prepared using the moclified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of
budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fuird. Line item accounts are defined as

the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts
referenced in N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-16.2(f)1. Transfers of appropriations may be made by school board
resolution al any time during the fiscal yeal in accordance with N.J.A.C . 6A:23A- 13.3.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device
during the year. For govemmental fuircls there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis
of accounting and generally accepted accountíng principles, with the exception of the legally mandated
revenue recognition of the one or more June state aicl payrnents for budgetary purposes only, and the
special revenue fund. N.J.S.A.18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not
macle until the following school budget year, school districts must record the delayed one or more June
state aid payments as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The bill
provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the curent budget year.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
govemmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the budgetary basis. The budgetary
basis differs fiom GAú{P in that the buclgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also
recognizes the related revellues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The budget, as detailed on exhibit C-1, exhibit C-2, and exhibit I-3, includes all amendments to the
adopted budget, ifany.
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATBMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2018

1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Budgets / Budgetarv Control (Cont'd)

Exhibit C-3 presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenues ancl special revenue fund revenues and
expenditures fi'om the budgetary basis of accounting, as presented in the general fund budgetary
comparison schedule and the special revenue fund budgetary comparison schedule, to the GAÁP basis of
accounting as presented in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances -
govemrnental fuirds. Note that the School District does not report encumbrances outstanding at fiscal
year-end as expenditures in the general fund since the general fund budget follows the modified accrual
basis of accounting, with the exception of the aforementioned revenue recognition policy for the one or
more June state aicl pa¡arrents.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorcled to assign a porlion of the applicable appropriation, is utilized for
budgetary control purposes. Encumbrances are a component of fund balance at fiscal year-end as they do
not constitute expenditures or liabilities, but rather commitrnents related to unperformed contracts for
goocls ancl services. Open encumbrances in the govermnental funcls, other than the special revenue fund,
which have not been previously restricted, committed, or assigned, should be includecl within cornmitted
or assigned fund balance, as appropriate.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, however, foL which the School District has received
advances ofgrant awaLds, are reflected on the balance sheet as unearned revenues at fiscal year-end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next f,rscal year. An entry will be made at
the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the
outstanding encumblance amount as of the cun'ent f,rscal year end.

Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash ecluivalents, for all funds, include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all higlily
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the tirne of purchase and are stated at cost
plus accrued interest. Such is the definition of cash and cash equivalents used in the statement of cash
flows for the proprietary funds. U.S. treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with
maturities of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost. Al1 other investments are stated af fair
value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions
tlrey rnay invest in. N.J.S.A. l8A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased
by New Jersey school districts.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units.
The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless
such funds are secured in accordance with the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"), u

multiple financial institutional collateral pool, which was enacted in 7970 to protect governrnental units
from a loss of funds on cleposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. Public depositories
include State or federally chartered banks, savings banks or associations located in or having a branch
office in the State of New Jersey, the deposits of which are federally insured.
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1: SIIMMARY OF SIGNIF.ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIBS (CONT'D)

Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments (Cont'd)

All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the
average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of govemmental units. If a public
depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is
available to pay the amouff of their cleposits to the governrnental units.

Inventories

Inventories are valuecl at cost, which approximates market. The costs are determined on a first-in, first-
out method.

The cost of inventories in the governmental funci fînancial statements is recorded as expenditures when
purchased rather than when consumed.

Inventories recorded on the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietaly fund types are
recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Tuition Receivable

Tuition charges were established by the School District based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses recorded on the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund
types represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2018.
The School District had no prepaid expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

In the govemrnental funcl financial statements, however, payments for prepaid items are fully recognized
as expenditures in the fiscal year of payment. No asset for the prepayment is created, and no expenditure
allocation to future accounting periods is required Qnn-allocation nrcthocf. This is consistent with the
basic govemmental concept that only expendable financial resources are reported by a specific fund.

Short-Term Interfund Receivables / Pavables

Short-tenn interfund receivables / payables (intemal balances) represent amounts that are owed, other
than charges for goods or services rendered to / frorn a particular fund within the School District, and
that arc due within one year. Such balances are eliminated in the statement of net position to minimize
the grossing up of intemal balances, thus leaving a net amount due between the govemmental and
business-type activities that are eliminated in the total goverrment column. Balances with fiduciary
activities are not considerecl to be internal balances; therefore, such balances appear on the statement of
net position as accounts receivable.
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Capital Assets

Capital assets represent the cumulative amount of capital assets owned by the School District. Purchased
capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fulrcl frnancial statements and are
capilalized at cost on the government-wide statement of net position and proprietary fund statement of
net position. In the case of gifts or contributions, such capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at
the time received.

The School District's capítalization threshold is 52,000.00. Other costs incurecl for repairs and
maintenance is expensed as incurred. All reporled capital assets, except land and construction in
progress, are depreciated. Depreciation is computecl using the stlaight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Description

Fumiture, Fixtures and Equipment
Buildings and Improvements
Land Lnorovemerfs

The School District does not possess any infrastructure assets.

Estimated Lives

5 - 20 Years
20-65 Years
20 Years

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

The statement of net position reports separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and defen'ed
inflows of resoulces. Deferrecl outflows of resources, reported after total assets, represents a reduction of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and will be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense)
at fhat tirne. Deferred inflows of resources, reported after total liabilities, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and will be recognizecl as an inflow of resoulces (revenue) at
that time.

Transactions are classified as deferred outflows of resources and cleferred inflows of resources only
when specifically prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) standards. The
School District is required to reporl the following as defened outflows of resources and deferred inflows
ofresources:

Defined Benefit Pension Plans - The difference between expected (actuarial) and actual experience,
changes in actuarial assunptions, net difference between projected (actuarial) and actual eamings on
pension plan investments, changes in the School District's proportion of expenses and liabilities to
the pension as a whole, differences between the School District's pension contribution and its
proportionate share of contributions, and the School District's pension contributions subsecluent to
the pension valuation measurement date.

In addition, the School District repoús the following as deferred outflows of resources:

Loss on Refunding of Debt - The loss on refunding arose from the issuance of refunding bonds,
which is amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the duration of the related debt as a
component of interest expense.
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Tuition Pavable

Tuition charges for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 werc based on rates established by
the receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

Unearned Revenue

Uneamed revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition cnteria have been
satisfied and is recorded as a liability until the revenue is both measurable and the School District is
eligible to realize the revenue.

Accrued Salaries and Wages

Certain School District ernployees who provide services to the School District over the ten-month
academic year have the option to have their salaries evenly disbulsed cluring the entire twelve-month
year. New Jersey statutes require that these eamecl but undisbursed amounts be retained in a separate
bank account. As of June 30, 2018, the amounts eamed by these employees were disbursed to the
employees' own individual credit union accounts.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are payments to employees for accumulated time such as paid vacation, paid
holidays, sick pay, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that is attributable to
services alreacly renderecl, and that are not contingent on a specif,rc event that is outside the control ofthe
School District and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits.
Compensatecl absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a specif,rc event that is
outsicle the control of the School District and its employees, are accounted f'or in the period in which
such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

The School District uses the vesting method to calculate the compensated absences amount. The entire
conpensated absence liability, including the employer's share of applicable taxes, is reporled on the
govemnent-wide financial statements. The portion related to employees in the proprietary funds is
recorded at the fund level. The currerf portion is the amount estimated to be used in the following fiscal
year. Expenditures are recognized in the goveffmental funds as payments come due each period, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. Compensated absences not recorded at the
fund level represent a reconciling item between the fund level and government-wide presentations.

Accrued Liabilities and Lons-Term Oblisations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide f,rnancial
statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations payable from proprietary
funds are reporled on the proprietary fund financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables
and accrued liabilities that, once incured, are paid in a timely manner, and in full from cuffent financial
resources, are reported as obligations of the funds. However, claims and judgments, compensated
absences, special termination benefits, and contractually required pension contributions that will be paid
from govemmental funds, are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent
that they are normally expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources. Bonds are
recognized as a liability on the governrnental fund financial statements when due.
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Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expe11se, information about the ficluciary net position of the
Teachers'Pension ancl Annuity Funcl ("TPAF") and the Public Employees'Retirement System ("PERS"),
and additions tolcleductions from TPAF's and PERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when clue and payable in accordance with the benef,it tems.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Bond Discounts / Premiums

Boncl cliscounts / premiurns arising from the issuance of long-tenn debt (bonds) are amortized over the
life of the bonds, in systematic and rational rnethod, as a component of interest expense. Bond discounts/
premiums are presented as an adjustment of the face amount of the bonds on the government-wide
staternent of net position and on the proprietary fund statement of net position.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between the sumrnation of assets and deferred outflows of
resources, and the sumr¡.ation of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net oosition is classified
into the following three components:

Net Investment in Capítal Assets - This component represents capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, net of outstanding balances of bonowings used for the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted - Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
either through the enabling legislation adoptecl by the School District or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other govemments.

Unrestrictecl - Net position is reported as unrestricted when it does not meet the criteria of the other
two components of net position.

The School District applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestrictecl net oosition is available.

Fund Balance

The School Distlict reports fund balance in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based prirnarily on
the extent to which the School District is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds can be spent. The School District's classifications, and policies for determining
such classifications, are as follows:

Nonspendable -The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that carmot be
spent because they are either not in spendable fom or are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact. The "not in spendable form" criterion includes items that are not expected to be
converted to cash, such as inventories and prepaid amounts.
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Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification includes arnounts that are restricted to
specific purposes. Such restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources either by
being (1) extemally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (2) irnposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - The comrnitted fund balance classification inclucles arnounts that can only be used for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the School District's highest
level of decision-making authority, which, for the School District, is the Board of Education. Such
formal action consists of an affìrmative vote by the Board of Eclucation, memorialized by the
adoption of a resolution. Once committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
Board of Education reilroves, or changes, the specifiecl use by taking the same type of action
(resolution) it ernployed to previously commit those amounts.

Assìgned - The assigned funcl balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the
School District's intent Io be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor cornmitted.
httent is expressed by either the Boarcl of Eclucation or by the business administrator, to which the
Boarcl of Education has clelegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.
Such authodty of the business aclministrator is established by way of a fonnal job description for
the position and standard operating procedures, approved by the Board ofEducation.

Unøssigned - The unassigned fund balance classification is the residual classiflrcation for the
general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds
and that has not been restrictecl, committecl, or assigned to specific purposes within the general
fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. ln
other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts
restricted, committed, or assignecl to those pulposes, it may be necessary to repoft a negative
unassigned fund balance.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restrictecl ancl unrestricted fund balances are
available, it is the policy of the School District to spend restricted fund balances first. Moreover, when
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications can be used, it is the policy of the School District to spend fund balances, if appropriate,
in the following order: conlnitted, assigned, then unassigned.

Interfund Activifv

Transfers between governrnental and business-type activities on the government-wide statements are
reported in the same marmer as general revenues. Exchange transactions between funds are reported as

revenues in the seller fuircls and as expenditures / expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or
goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers.
Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources / uses in governmental fuirds and after non-
operating revenues / expenses in proprietary funds. Reimbursements fi'om funds responsible for'
particular expenditures / expenses to the funds that ínitially paid for them are not presented on the
financial statements.

The preparation of f,rnancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts repofied in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from
those estimates.
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Impact of Recentlv Issued Accounting Principles

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

The School District has adopted the following GASB statements:

GASB No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions:
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and
local govemments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or
OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local govemmental employers about financial
support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review
of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment
benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting
assessments of accountability and inter-period equity, and creating additional transparency. The
requirements of this Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The
adoption of GASB 75 will impact the financial statements of the School District.

GASB No. 85 - Omnibus 2017: The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have
been identifred during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement
addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value
measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment benefits
[OPEB]). The requirements of Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2017.The adoption of GASB 85 is not expected to impact the financial statements of the School District.

GASB No. 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues: The primary objective of this Statement is to
improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by
providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing
resources-resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt-are placed in an irrevocable trust for the
sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for
prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in
substance. The requirements of Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginrring after June 15,
20L7.The adoption of GASB 86 is not expected to impact the financial statements of the School District.

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impact
on the financial statements include:

GASB No. 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations: This Statement addresses accounting and financial
reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability
associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government that has legal obligations to
perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability
based on the guidance in this Statement. The requirements of Statement will be effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of
GASB 83 on the School District's financial statements.
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Impact of Recentlv Issued Accounting Principles (Cont'dl

GASB No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities:The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the
identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those
activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identiffing fiduciary activities of all
state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is
controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship
exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit
arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The requirements of Statement will be effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the
adoption of GASB 84 on the School District's financial statements.

GASB No. 87 - Leases: The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of
financial statement users by improving accounting and f,rnancial reporting for leases by governments. Ttris
Statement increases the usefulness of governments' f,rnancial statements by requiring recognition of
certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classif,red as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases
are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a
lease receivable and a deferred inflow ofresources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of
information about governments' leasing activities. The requirements of Statement will be effective for
reporting periods beginning after periods beginning after December 15,2019. Management is evaluating
the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 87 on the School District's financial statements.

GASB No. 88 - Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Pløcements.' The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in
notes to government f,rnancial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct
placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information
related to debt. This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a
liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of
cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is
established. This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in
notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt;
and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related
consequences, significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant
subjective acceleration clauses. For notes to financial statements related to debt, this Statement also
requires that existing and additional information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements
of debt separately from other debt. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods
beginrring after June 75, 2018. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB
88 on the School District's financial statements.

GASB No. 89 - Accounting for Interest Cost Incurued beþre the End of a Construction Period: The
objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about
capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simpliff accounting for interest
cost incurred before the end of a construction period. This Statement establishes accounting requirements
for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest
that previously was accounted for in accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 512 of Statement
No. 62, Codffication of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30,
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements,which are superseded by this Statement. cost is incurred for
financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.
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Impact of Recentlv Issued Accounting Principles (Cont'd)

This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as

an expense in the period in which the As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or
enterprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current
financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period
should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with govemmental fund accounting
principles. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 75, 2019. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 89 on the
School District's financial statements.

No. 6l: The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of
reporting a goveûtment's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the
relevance of f,rnancial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity
interest and specifies that a majoríty equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported
as an investment if a govemment's holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A
majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity
method, unless it is held by a special-purpose govemment engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary
fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or peÍnanent fund. Those
governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at faír value. For all other holdings of
a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should report the legally
separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the equity interest
should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This Statement
establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate orgarizalion results in the
government being financially accountable for the legally separate organtzation and, therefore, the
government should report that organtzation as a component unit. This Statement also requires that a
component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity interest account for its assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at acquisition value at the date the
government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component unit. Transactions presented in flows
statements of the component unit in that circumstance should include only transactions that occurred
subsequent to the acquisition. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of
GASB 90 on the School District's financial statements.

NOTE 2: CASH AND CASII EOUIVALENTS

Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank
failure, the School District's deposits might not be recovered. Although the School District does not have
a formal policy regarding custodial credit risk, N.J.S.A. 77:9-41 et seq. requires that governmental units
shall deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss uncler the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). Under the Act, the first $250,000.00 of
goverrìmental deposits in each insured depository is protected by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC). Public funds owned by the School District in excess of FDIC insured amounts are
protected by GIIDPA. However, G{.IDPA cloes not protect intermingled agency funds such as salary
withholdings, ancl student activity funds, or funds that may pass to the School District relative to the
happening of a future condition. Such funds are classified as uninsured and uncollateralized.
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As of June 30, 2018, none of the School District's bank balances of $4,543,265 were uninsured or
uncollateralized.

Insured $ 250.000

Uninsured and collateralized under GTIDPA
by pledging financial institutions 4,293,265

$ 4,543,265

NOTE 3: RESERVE ACCOUNTS

Capital Reserve - Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the
School District's approved Long Range Facilities Plan ("LRFP"). Upon submission of the LRFP to the
Department, a school district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in
the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at fiscal year-end
(June I to June 30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or
both. A school district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters
has been obtained by either a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one ofthe four
special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19.60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.1(9), the
balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects
in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July l, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning Balance July I,20I7 S 653,093

Add:

Interest Earnings

2017-18 Budget
5,935

289,544

Ending Balance June 30, 2018 S 948,572

The June 30, 2018 LRFP balance oflocal support costs ofuncompleted projects at June 30, 2018 is
s2,652,500.

Maintenance Reserve - New Jersey Statute l8A:7G-9 permits school districts to accumulate funds for the
required maintenance of a facility in accordance with EFCFA. The balance may only be increased through an
appropriation in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. Upon completion of a school facilities
projects, districts are required to submit a plan for maintenance of that facility.
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The activity of the maintenance reserve for the July l, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning Balance July 1,2017 $ 989,014

Add:

Interest Earnings 8,987

Ending Balance June 30,2018 $ 998,001

NOTE 4: ACCOTINTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at June 30,2018 consisted of accounts (fees for services) and intergovernmental
awards / grants. AII receivables are considered collectible in full due to the stable condition of federal
and state programs, the current f,rscal year guarantee of federal funds, and the regulated budgetary
control of governmental entities in New Jersey.

Accounts receivable as of fiscal year end for the School District's individual major and fiduciary funds,
in the aggregate, are as follows:

Special
General Revenue Enterprise

Receivables: Fund Fund Funds Total

Governmental $ 95,459$ 56,621 $ 8,854$ 160,934
Other 101,759 3,709 105,468

Totals $ 197,218$ 56,621 $ 12,563$ 266,402::::

NOTE 5: INVENTORY

Inventory recorded at June 30, 2018 in business-type activities on the govemment-wide statement of net
position, and on the food service enterprise fund statement of net position, consisted of the following:

Food $ 10"097

Supply 1,463

Totals $ 11.560
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NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS

The Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows

Balance

7/l/2017 Additions
Goverrrmental activities :

CaprtalAssets That Are Not Being Depreciated:

Land $

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Land Improvements

46,066 $

46,066

Building and Improvements

Furniture, Fixutres & Equþment

Totals at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for :

Land Improvements

Building and Improvements

Furniture, Fixutres & Equþment

Total ac cumulated deprec iation

Total capital assets being deprecnted"

net of accumulated depreciation

Government activities capital assets, net

Busines s-type ac tivities :

Caprtal as s ets being deprec iated:

Furniture, Fixutres & Equþment

Less accumulated depreciation for :

Furniture, Fixutres & Equþment

Business-type activities capital assets, net

39,551

Adjustment
Balance

6t30/2018

46,066

46,066

449,615

20,403292

7,125,060

(38,916)

160,422

449,615

20,364,376

1,325,033

2r,977,967 39,551 r2r,506 22,139,024

(449,6t5)

(9,023,096)

(794,326)

(604,698)

(s0243)
21,792

(254,826)

(449,6t5)
(9,606,002)

(1,099,395)

* Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as

(10267,037) (654,94r) (233,034) (11,155,012)

rr,7r0,930 (615,390) r0,984,012

g rlJs6,99L $ (615,3Ð $ (rup8) $__ 11,030,078

To Ä-1 To A-1

287,IL7 $

(267,93t) (r,974)

$ 15,467 $ 302,584

(t5,467) (285,372)

19,186 $ (1,974) $ 172r2:
follows:

Irsructional

Administation

Total depreciation expens e

26,026

628,915

s 654,94r
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NOTE 7: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the following changes occurred in long-term obligations for
governmental activities:

Long-term liability activily for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Amounts

Ending Due within Long-term
Ädditions Reductions Balance One Year Portion

Beginning

Balance

Gove rnmental Activities :

Bonds payable:

General obligation debt $

Add Amounts:

Issuance Premium

Total bonds payable

Other Liabilities:

Compensated absences payable

Net Pension Liabililv

9,165,000 $

w779

(905,000) $

(622e2)

8260,000 $

760487

895,000 $ 7,365,000

760487

9,987,779

565,500

4,979,985

(e672e2)

(297,050)

(968,527)

9,020487

268,450

4,01ll58

895,000

37,532

8,125,487

230,918

4,011,458

Total liabilities

Business-Type Activities :

Compensated absences payable $

$ 15,533264 $ $ (2232,869) $ 13,300,395 $ 932,532 $ 12,367,863

$$

TotalLong-Term Liabilities S 15,533264' $_ S (2232,869) S 13,300395 $ 932,532 $ 12,367,863

The bonds payable are generally liquidated by the debt service fund, while the compensated absences
and net pension liability are liquidated by the general fund.

Bonds Payable - Bonds and loans are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the
municipality through referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period
of usefulness. Bonds issued by the School District are general obligation bonds.

On July 1,2006, the School District issued $3,487,000 general obligation bonds at interest rates varying
from 4.00%ó to 4.25%ó for various construction and renovation projects. The final maturity of these bonds
was originally January 1,2021; however, the School District issued refunding bonds on September 14,
2016 to advance refund the bonds maturing on January l, 2018 through January L, 2021. The final
payment was paid on January 1,2017.

On October 15,2009, the School District issued $9,883,000 general obligation bonds at interest rates
varying from 2.50%o to 4.00%o for various construction and renovation projects. The final maturity of
these bonds was originally March l, 2030; however, the School District issued refunding bonds on
September 14,2016 to advance refund the bonds maturing on March 1,2020 through March 1,2030.
The final payment will be paid on March 1,2019.
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NOTE 7: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

Bonds Pavable (Cont'd)- On September 14, 2016, the School District issued $8,365,000.00 of
refunding bonds at interest rates varying from 2.00% to 4.00%o to advance refund the callable bonds of
the2006 and 2009 issues. The final maturity of these bonds is March 1,2130. The bonds will be paid
from property taxes.

Principal and interest due on bonds outstanding is as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2019$895,000s292,875$1,187,875
2020
2021
2022

885,000 266,025 1,151,025
925,000 230,625 1,155,625
480,000 193,625 673,625

33,135

5,962

2023-2027 3,190,000 636,125 3,926,125
2028-2032 1,995,000 128,425 2,013,425

_q_q,260,999_ _g 1,816,125_ _q_10,00?Jgg_

Bonds Authorized but not fssued - As of June 30,2018, the School District had no authorizations to
issue additional bonded debt.

Compensated Absences - As previously stated, compensated absences will be paid from the fund from
which the employees' salaries are paid. Refer to note 14 for a description of the School District's policy.

Net Pension Liabilitv - For details on the net pension liability, refer to Note 9. The School District's
annual required contribution to the Public Employees'Retirement System is budgeted and paid from the
general fund on an annual basis.

NOTE 8: OPERATING LEASES

At June 30, 2018, the School District had operating lease agreements in effect for copy machines and a
mail machine. The present value of the future minimum rental payments under the operating lease
agreements are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Amount

2019 s 33.662

2020

2021

Total q 71 7<ov t-.rJt

Rental payments under operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 were $33,662.
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the School District are covered by either the Public
Employees'Retirement System (PERS) or the Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) which have
been established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and
Benefits (Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both
Systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues
a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund.
For additional information about PERS or TPAF, please refer to Division's Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at http://www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/financial-
reports.shtml.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS and TpAF:

Tier Definition
1 Members who are enrolled prior to July 1,2007 .

2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 andprior to November 2,2008.
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010.
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22,2010 and prior to June 28, 2011.
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 201 l.

Public Employeesr Retirement System

The PERS is a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that was established in
1955. The PERS provides retirement, death and disability, and medical benefits to qualified members.
The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:I5A. All benefits vest after ten
years of service, except for medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service or under the disability
provisions of PERS.

Service retirement benef,rts of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available
to tiers I and2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reachingage 62. Service
retirement benefits of 1/60th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4
members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are
available to tiers I and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 with 25 years or more of service
credit before age 62, and tier 5 with 30 years or more of service credit before age 65. Benefits are
reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a
member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1

members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of
service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and
have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier.

Contributions - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:I5A and requires contributions by active
members and contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by
State of New Jersey legislation. PERS provides for employee contributions of 7.34% of employees'
annual compensation through June 30, 2018. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate in PERS. The current PERS rate is 13.37% of covered payroll. The District's
contributions to PERS for the years ended June 30,2018, and 2017, werc $161,331 and $159,641
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. The actuarially determined contribution
includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums.
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONT'D)

Public Employeeso Retirement System (Cont'd)

Contributions (Cont'd)- The total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2018 was $8,843,646. Payroll
covered by PERS was $1,222,176 lor fiscal year 2018. Contributions to the system for the year ended
June 30" 2018 were as follows:

PERS

Employees S 89,707

District 161,331

rotal $ _z|l!_
The District is billed annually for its normal contribution plus any accrued liability. These contributions
were equal to the required contributions for 2018, as follows:

Public Employees Retirement System

Fiscal Normal Accrued Total Funded by Paid by
Year Contribution Liability Liability State District

_2013_s ____2lpJ2_ $ ___l!!,818 $ __1É1,3it_ $ ____N/A $___!q1,3!l

Components of Net Pension Liability - At June 30, 2018, the District's proportionate share of the
PERS net pension liability was $4,0 1 I ,458 . The net pension liability was measured as of Jun e 30, 2017 .

The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined using update
procedures to roll forward the total pension liability from an actuarial valuation as of July I,2016,to
the measurement date of June 30, 2017 . The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based
on the District's actual contributions to the plan relative to the total of all pafücipating employers'
contributions for the year ended June 30, 2017.The District's proportion measured as of June 30,2017
was 0.017233% which was an increase of 0.00042% from its proportion measured as of June 30,2016.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - The District's 2018 PERS pension
expense, with respect to GASB 68, was 5274,162. The District's 2018 deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources were from the followins sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 94,456 $
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual eamings

on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total

808,171 805,208

27,3r5
235,625 268,255

16r,33r

$ 1,326,898 $ 1,073,463



-)I-
BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTINB 30.2018

NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONT'D)

Public Employees' Retirement System (Cont'd)

Pension Expense and I)eferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Cont'd) - Amounts reported as

deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in pension expense as follows:

Year PERS

21,864

76,865
90,537

(97,058)

(102)

92,106

Additional Information - Collective Balances at June 30" 2018 and20l7 are as follows:

Year 6t30t20r8 6t30t201.7

20t8
2019

2020
202t
2022

Thereafter
Total

Collective deferred outflows of resources
Collective deferred inflows of resources

Collective Net Pension Liabilitv
District's Proportion

Measurement Date

Actuarial Valuation Date
Investment Rate of Return
Salary Scale (Based on Age):

Through2026
Thereafter

Inflation

$ 1,326,898 $

$ 1,073,463 $

$ +,011,458 $

0.017233%

r,700,892
366,097

4,979,985
0.016815%

A.ctuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30,2017 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 7,2016 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This
actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

PERS

June 30, 2017

July 1,2016
7.00%

r.6s% - 4.Is%
2.65% - 5.r5%

2.25%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Preretirement Mortality Table for
male and female active participants. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males
and females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for
females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013
using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Post-
retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Heatthy Male and Female Mortality
Tables (set back I year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former
members and a one-year static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the
tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members provide for future improvements in
mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's
modified MP-20I4 projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were
based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward 1 year for
females).
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Public Employees' Retirement System (Cont,d)

Actuarial Assumptions (Cont'd) - The actuarial assumptions used in the July l, 2016 valuation were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014. It is
likely that future experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual
experience deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than
anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected
rate of return on plan investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with
the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board
of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of aritbmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30,2017 are summarized in
the following table:

PERS

Target Long-Term Expected
Allocation Real Rate of Return

Asset Class

Absolute return/risk mitisation

Cash equivalents

US Treasuries

Investment grade credit

Public high yield

Global diversif,red credit

Client oriented hedge funds

Debt related private equity

Debt related real estate

Private real asset

Equity related real estate

U.S. equity

Non-U.S. developed markets equity

Emerging markets equity

Buyouts/venture capital
Total

5.00%

5.s0%

3.00%

10.00%

2.50%

s.00%

r.00%

2.00%

1.00%

2.50%

6.25%

30.00%

tt.50%
6.s0%

8.2s%

5.51%

r.00%

1.87%

3.78%

6.82%

7.t0%

6.60%

t0.63%
6.61%

tt.83%
9.23%

8.t9%

9.00%

rt.64%

t3.08%

__l9q.0q%_
Discount Rate - The discount rate as of June 30, 2017 used to measure the total pension
liability was 5.00%o for PERS. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term
expected rate of retum on pension plan investments of 7 .00yo and a municipal bond rate of
3.58o/o as of June 30, 2017 based on the Bond Buyer Go 2O-Bond Municipal Bond Index,
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an avetage rating of
A/JAa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed
that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates
and that contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most
recent fiscal year. The State employer contributed 40%o of the actuarially determined
contributions and the local employers contributed lÙ0o/o of their actuarially determined
contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2040
for PERS.
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Public Employees' Retirement System (Cont'd)

I)iscount Rate (Cont'd) - Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments
was applied to projected benefit payments through 2040 and the municipal bond rate was
applied to projected benefit payments aft.er that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following
presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of June 30,2017,
calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above, as well as what the collective net pension liability
would be íf it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (4.00Vo) or I-
percentage-point higher (6.00%) than the current rate:

District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability

1olo Decrease

(4.00%)

$ 4,976,486

Current Discount
(s.00%)

1olo Increase

(6.00%)

$ ____lp1lll8 s _____1207,470

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund

The TPAF was established as of January I,1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 184:66 to provide
retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers'
Pension and Amuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer def,rned benefit pension plan
with a special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system's other related non-contributing employers.
Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by
the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are
unclassifi ed, professional and certified.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 184:66. TPAF provides retirement, death and
disability benefits. All benehts vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest
after 25 years of service or unde¡ the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are always fully vested
for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2o/o of related
interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are
entitled to fuIl interest credited to the members' accounts.

Contributions - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 184:66 and requires contributions by active
members and contributing employers. Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 20II, the active
member contribution rate increased from 5.5%o of annual compensationto 6.5%o plus an additional 1%
phased-in over 7 years beginning in July 2012.The member contribution rate was 7.34% in State fiscal
year 2018. The phase-in of the additional incremental member contribution rate takes place in July of
each subsequent State fiscal year. The State's pension contribution is based on an actuarially
determined amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an amofüzation of the
unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory group insurance benefits is based on actual
claims paid. For fiscal year 2017, the State's pension contribution was less that the actuanal determined
amount. Under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on-
behalf of the District and all other related non-contributing employers. No normal or accrued liability
contribution by the District has been required over several preceding fiscal years. These on-behalf
contributions by the State of New Jersey are considered a special funding situation, under the defrnition
of GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.
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Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (Cont,d)

The District was not required to make any contributions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018 because of the 100% special frrnding situation with the State of New Jersey.

Trend Information for TPAF (Paid on-behalf of the District)

Year
Fundine
6130lt8
6t30t17
6t30n6

Annual
Pension

Cost (APC)
967,603
475,562
475,562

Percentage
ofAPC

Contributed
100
100

100

Net
Pension

Oblieation
N/A
N/A
N/A

%

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the State of New Jersey contributed S961,603 to the TPAF
for pension contribution s, $627 ,079 for post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School, and $ 1 ,642 for
long-term disability. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 184:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed
the District 5525,849 during the year ended June 30, 2018 for the employer's share of social security
contributions for TPAF members. as calculated on their base salaries.

Components of Net Pension Liability - At June 30,2018, the District was not required to report a
liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability because of a l00o/o reduction for State of
New Jersey pension support provided to the District.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions to/deductions from the TPAF's
frduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at afatr value.

Pension Expense - For the year ended June 30,2018, the District recognized pension expense of
52,921,234 and revenue of $2,921,234 for support provided by the State.

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2016, which was rolled forward to June 30,2017.
This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the
measurement:

TPAF

Measurement Date

Actuarial Valuation Date
Investment Rate of Retum
Salary Scale (Based on Age):

Through 2026
Thereafter

lnflation

June30,2017

July 1,2016
7.00%

Varies based
on experience

2.25%
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Asset Class

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (Cont'd)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the
following table:

TPAF
Target Long-Term Expected

Allocation Real Rate of Return
Absolute return/risk mitieation

Cash equivalents

US Treasuries

Investment grade credit

Public high yield

Global diversif,red credit

Client oriented hedge funds

Debt related private equity

Debt related real estate

Private real asset

Equity related real estate

U.S. equity

Non-U.S. developed markets equity

Emerging markets equity

Buyouts/venture capital

Total

s.00%

s.s0%

3.00%

10.00%

2.50%

5.00%

r.00%

2.00%

1.00%

250%

6.25%

30.00%

rr.s0%

6.50%

8.25%

55t%
1.00%

1.87%

3.78%

6.82%

7.r0%

6.60%

10.63%

6.61%

tt.83%
9.23%

8.r9%

9.00%

tt.64%
13.08%

r00.00%

I)iscount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.25o/o as of June 30,
2077. Tl'tts single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of retum on pension
plan investments of 7.00% and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30,2017 based on the Bond
Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in
the most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 40% of the actuarially determined contributions.
Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2036. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2036 and
the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments aft.er that date in determining the
total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - As indicated
above, TPAF has a special funding situation where the State pays 100% of the District's annual
required contribution.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits financial
report. Information on where to obtain the report is indicated at the beginning of this note.
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NOTE 10. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

General Information about the OPEB Ptan

The State of New Jersey reports a liability as a result of its statutory requirements to pay other
postemplo¡rment (health) benefits for State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan.
The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-employer defined
benefit OPEB plan that is administered on a pay-as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets are
accumulated in a qualiffing trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for the Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State
Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription drug, and
Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to be
funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f. According to N.J.S.A
52:14- I7.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to employees who retire from a board of
education or county college with 25 years or more of service credit in, or retires on a disability pension
from, one or more of the following plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement System (PFRS), or the
Alternate Benefit Program (ABP).Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L,2011, future retirees eligible for
postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28,2011
will be required to pay a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they
retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the
retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual retirement benefit and level
of coverage.

The total nonemployer OPEB liability does not include certain other postemployment benefit
obligations That are provided by the local education employers. The reporting of these benefits are the
responsibility of the individual local education employers.

Employees covered by benefit terms: At June 30,2018, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:

TPAF participant retirees
As of June 30 , 2017 , there were 112,966 retirees receiving post retirement medical benefits and the
State contributed $1.39 billion on their behalf.

PERS participant retirees
The state paid $238.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 20,913 eligible retired members in
Fiscal Year 2017.

Basis of Presentation

The Schedule presents the State of New Jersey's obligation under NJSA 52:14-17.32f. The Schedule
does not purport to be a complete presentation of the financial position or changes in financial position
of the State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan or the State of New Jersey. The
accompanying Schedule was prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Such preparation requires management of the State of New Jersey to make a number of
estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amounts. Due to the inherent nature of these
estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 10. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THA}[ PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONT'D)

Total OPEB Liability

The State of New Jersey's total OPEB liability, as of the measurement date of June 30, 2017, was
$53,639,841,858. Of this amount, the total OPEB liabitity attributable to the School District was
539,857,768. The State of New Jersey's proportionate share of the total OPEB liability is 100%,
including the proportion attributable to the School District of 0.07431%. The total OPEB liability for
the School District measured as of June 30, 2017 is zero as a result of the Special Funding Situation
with the State of New Jersey. The School District's proportionate share of the total OPEB liability
measured as of June 30,2017 is 0.00%. Accordingly, the School District did not recogntze any portion
of the collective net OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.

Total Nonemployer OPEB LÍabitity

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30,2077 was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of June 30,2016, which was rolled forward to June 30,2017. The total nonemployer OPEB liability as
of June 30, 2016 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016. The actuarial
assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This
actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

TPAF/ABP PBRS

Inflation Rate

Salary Increases:

Tkrough2026

Thereafter

250%
Based on

Years of Service

1.55% - 4.55%

2.00% - 5.4s%

2.50%
Based on

Age

z.ls% - 4.ts%
3.15% - 5.15%

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee
MaleÆemale mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using the MP-2017 scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-
Weighted Healthy Amuitant MaleÆemale mortality table with fully generational improvement
projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-
2014Headcount- Weighted Disabled MaleÆemale mortality table with fully generational improvement
projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of actuarial
experience studies for the periods July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2015, July 1,2010 - June 30,2013, and July
l,20ll - June 30,2014 for TPAF and PERS, respectively.

Ilealth Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 5.9%o

and decreases to a 5.0% long{erm trend rate after nine years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical
benefits, the trend rate is 4.5o/o.For health maintenance orgarrlrzation (Iilvfo) medical benefits, the trend
rate is initially 5.9o/o and decreases to a 5.0%o long-term trend rate after nine years. For prescription drug
benefits, the initial trend rate is 10.5% decreasing to a 5.0o/o long-term trend rate after eight years. For
the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5%
and will continue in all future years.
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NOTE 10. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONT'D)

Discount rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2017 was 3.58%. This represents the municipal bond return rate as

chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 2O-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance as of June 30.2016 Measurement Date
Changes for the year:

Service cost

Interest cost

Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions or other inputs

Member contributions
Gross benefit payments

Net changes

Balance as of June 30,2017 Measurement Date

s 43.079.843

1,576,959

r,260,137

(5,t69,974)
33,994

(923,t90)
(3,222,075)

$ 39,857,768

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to changes in the discount rate:

The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30,2017, respectively,
calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB
liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30. 2017

At 1.00% Decrease At Discount Rate At 1.00% Increase
2.58% 3.58% 4.58%

$ 63,674,362,200 53,639,941,959 45,690,364,953

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to changes in the healthcare trend rate:

The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017 , calculated using the
healthcare trend rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB liability would be
if it was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1- percentage point lower or l-percentage point
higher than the current rate:

June 30.2017
Healthcare Cost Trend

I.00% Decrease Rate I.00% Increase

s 44,113,584,560 53,639,941,959 66,290,599,457
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NOTE 10. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONT'D)

OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the School District recognized OPEB expense of 52,277,861. The
School District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources from the
followins sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments

Changes in proportion
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total

$

4,713,818

84,706

$ 4,798,524

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows.

Measurement Period Ending June 30, OPEB

$ 494,111
494,Ill
494,111

494,lrr
494,llL

1,749,I53

201 8

20r9
2020
202r
2022

Thereafter

Total s 4,219,708

Special Funding Situation

The participating local education employer allocations included in the supplemental Schedule of special
funding amounts by employer are provided as each local education employer is required to record in
their financial statements, as an expense and corresponding revenue, their respective amount of total
OPEB expense attributable to the State of New Jersey under the special funding situation and to include
their respective amount of total OPEB liability in their notes to their financial statements. The total
OPEB liability and service cost for each employer was determined separately based on actual data for
each employer's participants.
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NOTE 11: ON-BBHALF PAYMENTS

For the fiscal year endecl Juue 30,2018, the School District has recognized as revenues and
expenditures on-behalf payments made by the State for normal costs and post-retiremeil medical costs
related to TPAF, in the fund financial statements. The amounts recognized as revenues and
expenditures in the fund financial statements for normal costs, post- retirement medical costs, and long-
tenn disability insurance were $961,603, $621,079, and 9I,642, respectively. Also, in accorclance with
N.J.S.A. 184:66-66 the State of New Jersey reirnbursed the District $525,849 during the year ended
June 30, 2018 for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated
on their base salaries.

NOTE 12: RISK MANAGEMENT

The School District is exposecl to various risks of loss related to tofts; theft of, damage to, and
clestruction of assets; enors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

New Jersev Unemplovment Compensation Jnsurance - The School District has elected to fund its
New Jersey Unemployment Cornpensation lnsurance under the "Benef,rt Reimbursement Method".
Under this plan, the School District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Funcl
for benefits paid to its former ernployees and charged to its account with the State. The School District
is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State.

The following is a sunìmary of the activity of the School District's private-purpose trust fund for the
unemployment claims for the current and previous two fiscal years:

Fiscal Year School District Employee Interest Claims Ending
Ended June 30. Contributions Contributions Income Incurred Balance

2018 $ 20,000 s 75,264 $1,205 $ 5,703 S t58,924
2017 16,000 t4,g0l 100 129,159
2016 25,000 15,011 l0 16,594 g7,I5g

Joint Insurance Fund - The School District is a mem.ber of the School Alliance Insurance Fund. The
Fund provides its members with the following coverage:

Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability
Property (Including Crime and Auto Physical

Damage) General and Auto Liability
School Board Legal Liability

Boiler and Machinery
PollutiodEnvironmental Legal

Liability Blanket Dishonesty Bonc

Contributions to the Fund, including a reserve for contingencies, are payable in two installments and are
based on acÍnrial assumptions determined by the Fund's actuary. The Commissioner of Banking and
Insurance tnay order additional assessments to supplement the Fund's claim, loss retention, or
administrative accounts to assure the payment of the Fund's obligations.

For more infonnation regarding claims, coverages ancl deductibles, the Fund publishes its own financial
report for the year ended December 31,2017, which can be obtained from:

School Alliance Insurance Fund
5l Everett Drive, Suite B-40

West Windsor, New Jersey 08550
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NOTE 13: DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The School District offers its employees a choice of three deferred compensation plans created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Sections 403(b) and 457. The plans, which are administered by
the entities listed below, permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts
deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as follows:

Lincoln Investment P lønning
AXA Equitable

Vanguard

NOTE 14: COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The School District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), Accountingfor Compensated
Absences. A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as
employees earn the rights to the benefits.

School District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the
School District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The
School District policy permits employees to accumulate sick leave and carry forward the full amount to
subsequent years. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by the School District for the unused sick
leave in accordance with the School District's agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences is recorded within those funds as the benefits accrue to
employees. At June 30, 2018 the liability for compensated absences reported on the government-wide
statement of net position was $268,450.

NOTE 15: INTERFT]ND RECEIVABLES. PAYABLES. AIID TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30,2018 is as follows:

Fund
Interfund Interfund
Receivable Payable

General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Student Activity
Payroll Agency

Total g 56,624 S 56,624

The interfund receivables and payables above predominately resulted from payments made by certain
funds on behalf of other funds. During the fiscal year 2018, the School District expects to liquidate such
interfunds, depending upon the availabilþ of cash flow.

s 36,624

s 56,621

20,000
J
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NOTE 16: CAPITAL DEBT REFUNDING

On September 14,2016, the School District issued $8,365,000 in general obligation bonds with interest
rates varying from 2.00% to 4.00%o to refund $8,625,000 of outstanding2006 series bonds with interest
rates varying from 4.00% to 4.25o/o and 2009 series bonds with interest rates varying from 2.50%o to
4.00o/o.The bonds were issued at a premium of $872,094.The net proceeds of $9,116,749 (after payment
of issuance costs of $120,345) were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for
all future debt service payments on the 2006 and 2009 series bonds. As a result of the current refunding,
the School District will reduce its total clebt service payments over the next ten years by 5473,679, which
results in an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments of the
old and new debt) of $432,414, or 5.01o/o of the principal arnount being refuncled. The current refunding
meets the requirements of an in-substance defeasance and the liability for the refuncled bonds was
removed frorn the School District's financial statements.

NOTB 17: CONTINGENCIES

Grantor Aqencies - Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies could be subject to audit ancl
adjustment by grantor agencies. Any disallowed clairns, including amounts already collected, may
coltstitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the School District expects such
amount, if any, to be immaterial.

Litieation - The School District is a defendant in several legal proceedings thaf are in various stages of
litigation. It is believecl that the outcome, or exposure to the School District, from such litigation is either
unknown or potential losses, if any, would not be material to the financial statements.

NOTE 18: CONCENTRATIONS

The School District depends on financial resorlrces flowing from, or associated with, both the federal
government and the State of New Jersey. As a result of this dependency, the School District is subject to
changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on modifications to federal and State
laws and federal and State appropriations.

NOTE 19: DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

The School District has a deficit fund balance of $19,680 in the general fund as of June 30, 2018 as

reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S.A. 1.8A:22-44.2 provides that in the
event a state school aid pal.rnent is not made until the following school budget year, school districts must
recorcl the delayed one or more June state aid payments as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the
current school budget year. The statute provides legal authority for school districts to recogpize this
revenue in the current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires
that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one government
recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the June
state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the School District cannot recognize the June state aid
payment on the GAAP financial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to the
timing difference of recording the June state aid payments, the general fund balance deficit does not
alone indicate that the School District is facins f,rnancial difficulties.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unassigned general fund balance that is reported as a
direct result from a delay in the June payments of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not
considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The School
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NOTB 20: FUND BALANCES

NONSPBNDABLE

As stated in Note 1, the non-spendable fund balance classification includes amoullts that cannot be spent
because they are either not in spendable fonn or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact. There ale no non-sperlclable fund balances of the School District as of June 30, 2018.

RESTRTCTED

As stated in Note l, the restricted fund balance classification includes atnounts that are restricted to
specific purposes. Such restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources by either of the
following: (1) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governrìlents; or (2) inrposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Specific
restrictions of the School District's fund balance are surrìmarizecl as follows:

General Fund

For Excess Surplus - In accordance with N.J.S.A. 184:7F-7, as amended, the designation of
restricted fund balance - excess surplus is the result of a required calculation pursuant to the New
Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New
Jersey school districts are required to restrict general funcl balance at the fiscal year end of June
30 if they clid not appropriate a requirecl minimum amount as budgeted funcl balance in their
subsequent years'budget. The excess fund balance at June 30,2018 is $1,677,451, of which
$746,232 was assigned for utilization in the 2018-19 budget and $931,219 will be utilized in the
2019-20 budget.

For Capital Reserve Account - As of June 30,2018, the balance in the capital reserve account is
5948,572. These funds are restricted for future capital outlay expenditures for capital projects in
the School District's approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP).

For Maintenance Reserve Account - As of June 30, 2018, the balance in the maintenance
reserve account is $998,001, of which $211,500 is restricted and assignecl for utilization in the
2018-19 budget. These funds are restricted for the required maintenance of school facilities in
accordance with the Educational Facilities Construction and Financing Act (EFCFA) (N.J.S.A.
184:7G-9) as amended by P.L. 2004, c.73(S1701).

Debt Service Fund - ln accordance with N..I.A.C. 6A:23Ã-8.6, a clistrict board of education shall
appropriate annually all debt service fund balances in the buclget certified for taxes unless expressly
authorized ancl documented by the voters in a bond referendum. As a result, the School District has
appropriated and included as an anticipated revenue for the fiscal year encling June 30, 2019
all ofthe $25,004 ofdebt service fund balance at June 30, 201 8.

COMMITTED

As stated in Note 1, the comrnitted fund balance classif,rcation includes amounts that can only be used for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by fonnal action of the School District's highest level
of decision-making authority, which is the Board of Education. There were no specific commitments of
the School District's fund balance at June 30,2018.
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NOTE 20: FUND BALANCES (CONT'D)

ASSIGNED

As stated in Note 1, the assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the
School District's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restrictecl nor cornmitted. Specific
assignments of the School District's funcl balance are surnmarizecl as follows:

General Fund

For Subsequent Year's Expenditures - The District has appropriated and included as an
anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 565,817 of general fund balance at
June 30. 201 8.

Other Purposes - As of June 30, 2018, the School District had no encumbrances outstanding for
purchase orders and contracts signecl by the School District, but not completed, as of the close of
the fiscal vear.

UNASSIGNBD

As stated in note 1, the unassigned fund balance classification represents fund balance that has not been
restrictecl, corrunitted, or assigned to specif,rc pulposes. The School District's unassignecl funcl balance is
surnrnarized as follows :

General Fund - As of June 30. 201 8. the School District has a deficit fund balance of $ 1 9^680 in
the general fund. See Note 19.

NOTE 21: SUBSEQTJENT EVENTS

There were no other events noted, between the year-end and the date of the audit report, requiring
clisclosure.

End of Notes to Financial Statements
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Budget

Modifications

Exhibit C-l
(l)

Variance

Positive (Negative)

Final to Actual

Original

Budget

$9,r 81,593

30,240
1,408,328

2,470

1,631

s0,000

Final

Budget

$9,1 81,s93
30,240

r,408,328

2,470

1,631

50,000

Actual
REVENUES:

General Fund:

Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy

Tuition from Individuals

Tuition from Other LEAs within the State

Interest on Maintenance Reserve

Interest on Capital Reserve

Unrestricted Miscellaneous Revenues

Total - Local Sources

State Sources:

Special Education Categorical Aid
Equalization Aid
Security Aid
Adjustment Aid
Transportation Aid
Under Adequacy Aid
PARCC Readiness Aid
Per Pupil Grow.th Aid
Professional Leaming Community Aid
Extraordinary Aid
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions (non-budgeted)

On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions - Normal (non-budgeted)

On-behalf TPAF Medical Contributions (non-budgeted)

On-behalf TPAF Long-Term Disability Insurance (non-budgeted)

Total - State Sources

Federal Sources:

Medicaid Administrative Claiming Aid
Medical Reimbursement Program (SEMI)

Total - Federal Sources

Total Revenues

$9,1 81,s93

30,070

1,408,328

8,987

5,935

I 13.135

$-
(170)

6,51'l
4,304

h{ I l\

10,674,262 10,674,262 10,748,048 73,786

477,653

3,880,223

158,534

102,575

97,770

11,616

8,930

8,930

8,780

477,653

3,880,223

rs8,s34
102,575

97,770

I1,616
8,930

8,930

8,780

477,653

3,932,441

ls8,s34
t02,575

97,770

11,616

8,930

8,930

8,780

95,459

525,849

961,603

62r,079
1,642

52,218

95,459

525,849

961,603
621,079

1,642

4,755,011 4,755,011 7,012,861 2,257,850

28,s46

4,705

23,84t
4,705

21,904 (t,937)

28,546 28,546 26,609 (1,e37)

ls,457,819 t5,457,819 l7 ,787 ,518 2,329,699
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Exhibit C-l
(2)

Variance

Positive (Negative)

Actual Final to Actual
GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE:

Regular Programs - Instruction:

Salaries ofTeachers:

Preschool/I(indergarten

Grades I - 5
Grades 6 - 8

Grades 9 - 12

Regular Programs - Home Instruction:

Salaries ofTeachers

Purchased ProfessionalÆducational Services

Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction:

Other Salaries for Instruction

Purchased ProfessionalÆducational Services

Purchased Technical Services

Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Textbooks

Other Objects

Total Regular Programs

Special Education:

Leaming and/or Language Disabilíties:

Salaries ofTeachers

General Supplies

Total - Iæaming and/or Language Disabilities

Auditory Impairments:

Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Total - Auditory Impairments

Behavioral Disabilities:

General Supplies

Total - Behavioral Disabilities

Multiple Disabilities:

Sala¡ies ofTeachers

Other Salaries for Instruction

General Supplies

Total - Multiple Disabilities

Original

Budget

$ 188,900

1,402,450

714"325

1,636,900

8,125

2s,950

9r,700
147,250

3,800

96,740

96,748

5 1,700

14,900

Budget

Modifications

$

lL,lJt

(22,000)

(4,s00)

4,630

(33,998)

(4,002)

2t5
(19,383)

54,380
(3,0s0)

Final

Budget

$ 188,900

t,415,187

692,325
1,632,400

8,1 25

30,580

57,702

143,248

3,800

96,9ss

77,365

106,080

I 1,850

$ 188,183 S

1,399,916

685,622

1,629,0s3

3,627
)a 7<Á.

57,702

140,900
') <Ã')

92,712

63,525

105,165

8,1 87

717

ts,27 |

6,703

4,498

1,226

2,348

1,238
4t47

I 3,840

915

3,663

4,479,488 (14,97t) 4,464,5t7 4,406,508 58,009

59,000 59,000

800 800

58,978

645

22

155

800 s9,000 s9,800 59,623 t77

I,500

800

I,s00
800

t,49s 5

800

2,300 2,300 1,495 805

600 (600)

600 (600)

55, l 00

I1,600
800

55, I 00

1 1,600

800

55,069

11,567

561

il

JJ

239

800 66,700 67,500 67,197 303
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Exhibit C-l
(3)

Variance

Positive (Negative)

Actual Final to Actual

s 74s,749 $ 14,945

t8t,22t 509
I 1,863 637

Original Budget Final
Budget Modifications Budget

EXPENDITURES (CONT'D):

GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE (CONT'D):

Special Education (Cont'd):

Resource Room/Center:

Salaries ofTeachers

Other Salaries for Instructron

General Supplies

Total - Resource Room/Center

Preschool Disabilities - Paf-Time:

Salaries ofTeachers

Other Salaries for Instruction

General Supplies

Total - Preschool Disabilities - Part-Time

Home Instruction:

Salaries ofTeachers

Purchased ProfessionalÆducational Services

Total - Home Instruction

Total - Special Education

Basic Skills/Remedial:

Salaries ofTeachers

Purchased Professional-Educational Services

General Supplies

Total - Basic Skills/Remedial

Bilingual Education:

Salaries ofTeachers

General Supplies

Total - Bilingual Education

School Sponsored Cocurricular Activities - Instruction:

Salaries

Supplies and Materials

Total - School Sponsored Cocurricular Activities - Instruction

$ 872,1s0
208,330

12,500

(111,4s6) $ 760,694
(26,600) 181,730

12,500

I,092,980 ( l 38,0s6)

69,000

t4,448
200

(41,220)

954.924 938"833 t 6,09 r

27,780

14,448

200

27,769

13,426

195

1l
t,022

5

83,648 (41,220) 42,428 41,390 I,038

6,500
4,000

34,960
(4,000)

41,460 41.443 l7

10,s00 30,960 4t,460 41,443 t7

I,l9l,628 (23,216) 1,168,412 1,149,98 r 18,431

6,500
2,000
(3s2)

6,500

2,000

248
635

66

6,s00

1,36s

182

701600 8.148 8,748 8,047

34,250

350

34,602

350

34,562 40

350

34,600 352 34.952 34,562 390

64,200

14,625

64,200

14,625

55,013

I 1,518

9,181

3,r07

78,825 78,825 66,531 t2,294



.BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund

Required Supplementary Information

Budsetary Comnarison Schedule

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201 8

Exhibit C-l
(4)

Variance

Positive (Negative)

Actual Final to Actual
EXPENDITURES (CONT'D):

CENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE (CONT'D):

School Sponsored Cocurricular Athletics - Instruction:

Salaries

Purchased Services

Workshops / Travel

Supplies and Materials

Other Objects

Total - School Sponsored Cocunicular Athletics - Instruction

Total - lnstruction

Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction:

Tuition to Other LEAs within State-Regular

Tuition to Other LEAs within Søte-Specíal

Tuition to County Vocational School District - Regular
Tuition to County Vocational School District - Special

Tuition to CSSD & Reg. Day Schools

Tuition to Private School for the Handicapped- State

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction

Undistributed Expenditures - Attendance and Social Work:
Salaries

Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Attendance and Social Work

Undistributed Expenditures - Health Services:

Salaries

Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Supplies and Materials

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Health Services

Undistributed Expenditures - Speech, OT, PT and Related Services:

Salaries

Purchased ProfessionalÆducational Services

Supplies and Materials

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Speech, OT, PT and Related Services

6,260,437 (29,287) 6,23t,1s0 6,105,007

Original

Budget

$ 368,046

82,390

21,275

3,585

Budget

Modifications

$ 1,038

(638)

Final

Budget

$ 369,084
81,7s2

)l )1\
3,585

$ 367,506 $

56,754

20,8 1 5

1,649

l,578
24,998

460

1,936

4'1s,296 400 475,696 446,724 28,972

126,t43

I 18,458

265,700

82,82s

26,504

508,620

765,546

(30,s00)

(41,0el)

(rs,000)
40,244

( 1 37,06s)

87,958

224,609

82,825

I I,504
548,864

628,481

74,961
205,258

82,825

548, I 40

384,787

12,997

l9,3s l

I 1,s04

724
243,694

1,76'Ì,653 (183,412) r,s84,241 t,295,971 288,270

79,050 (s,42s) 73,625 73,444 l8l

79,0s0 (s,42s) 73,625 73.444 181

124,615

21,975

5,ó50

385

(s,3s0)
125,000

16,625

s,650

t24,536
14,36t
3,9s6

464

2,264

1,694

t52,240 (4,96s) t47,275 142,853 4,422

60,s00
r52,260

I,150

? o<n

(4,208)
( 1,1 s0)

64,450

148,052

64,422

129,881

28

I 8,171

213,910 ( 1,408) 212,502 194,303 1 8,1 99
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BOROUGH OF PALMYR.A, SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201 I

Exhibit C-I
(s)

Variance

Positive (Negative)

Final to Actual

Final

Budget

$ 21,300

108,091

3,242

Original Budget
Budeet Modifications

EXPENDITURES (CONT'D):

GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE (CONT'D):

Other Support Services - Students - Related Services:

Salaries

Purchased ProfessionalÆducational Services

Supplies and Materials

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Other Support Services

Students - Related Services

Undistributed Expenditures - Guidance:

Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants

Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Guidance

Undistributed Expenditures - Child Study Teams:

Sala¡ies of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assist¿nts

Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff
Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Other Purchased Services

Miscellaneous Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Other Objects

Total - Undistríbuted Expenditures - Child Study Teams

Undistributed Expenditures - Improvement oflnstruction Services/Other Support:

Services - Instructíonal Staff:

Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction

Salaries of Other Professional St¿ff
Unused Vacation Pa]¡ment to Terminated/Retired Staff

Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Purchased Professional - Technical Services

Supplies and Materials

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Improvement of Instructron

Services/Other Support Services - Instructional Staff

68,250 64,383 132,633 1 I 0,896

$ 20,6s0

47,000

600

6s0

6 r,091

2,642

ï 19,7'17

89,469

1,650

I 5?1

18,622
I sqt

zl.t) I

260,150

30,900

6,800

2,500

3,750

( 1,200)

150

3,294

(s00)

(2,444)

258,950

31,050

10,094

2,s00
õ/)

l,306

258,658

31,015

9,659
1,930

325

1,306

292

35

4J)
570

J5U

305,475 (700) 304.775 302,893 I.882

364,395

39,525

34,500

3,100

1 l,500
5,650
1,600

(66,s00)

(s00)

750

36,000

25,261

297,89s

39,02s

750

70,500

3,100

36,761

5,650

r,600

295,896

39,0t7

55,1 30
I ?5q

34, I 00
4 lJ54

1,473

t,999
8

750

I 5,370

1,74t
2,661

r,596
127

460,2'10 (4,e8e) 455,281 43t.029 24,252

90,979
4,875

12,000

1,1 50

1,800

700

800

9,000

91,679

4,875

800

2r,000
1,150

1,800

91,679
4,257

684

20,282

1,120
1 ?O5

6t8
116

7t8
30

405

I 10,804 10,500 121,304 tt9,4l7 I,887
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOLDISTRICT
General Fund

Required Supplementarv Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201 I

Exhibit C-1
(6)

EXPENDITURES (CONT'D):

GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE (CONT'D):

Educational Media Services/School Library:

Salaries

Salaries of Technolory Coordinators

Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materiâls

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Educational Media

Services/School Library

Undistributed Expenditures - Central Services:

Salaríes

Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff
Purchased Professional Services

Purchased Technical Services

Miscellaneous Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Miscellaneous Expenditures

Other Objects

Toøl - Undistributed Expenditures - Central Services

Original Budget Final

Variance

Positive (Negatíve)

Budget Modifications Budget Actual Final to Actual

$ 114,600 $ (1,400) $ 113,200 $ 113,147 $ s3 i
167,333 1,161 168,494 t68,494 :

2,s00 ( l,500) 1,000 840 160 :,

3,000 (400) 2,600 2,s97

7,800 (938) 6,862 6,611

295,233 (3,077) 292,1s6 291,689 467

215,350 47,400 262,7s0 262,396 354

8,93s 8,93s 8,935

3,000 (3,ooo)

23,100 (11,942) r l,ls8 r 1,1s8

8,600 (2,681) 5,919 s,676 243

8,s00 (s,49s) 3,00s 3,00s

2,000 (2,000)

1,749 1,749 t ,749

260,ss0 32,966 293,s16 292,919 s97

.5

251

Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services General Administration:
Salaries 236,622 (5,458) 231,164 221,219 9,945
Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff 5,458 5,458 5,458

Legal Services 28,000 28,000 15,986 12,014
Audit Fees 25,000 (3,000) 22,000 22,000
Other Purchased Professional Services 7,350 (2,500) 4,850 4,261 589

CommunicationsÆelephone 23,000 23,000 21,492 1,508

OtherPurchased Services I 1,450 (1,500) 9,950 8,910 1,040

General Supplies 3,250 (1,500) 1,750 836 914
Miscellaneous Expenditures 4,350 (500) 3,850 3,195 655
BOE Membership Dues and Fees 6,900 6,900 6,765 135

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services General Administration 345,922 (9,000) 336,922 310,122 26,800

Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services School Administration:

Salaries ofPrincipals/AssistantPrincipals 319,964 1,536 321,500 321,500

Sala¡ies ofSecretarial and Clerical Assistants 70,425 (300) 70,125 70,032
Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff 19,496 19,496 19,496

Other Purchased Services 6,200 (3,790) 2,410 2,359
Supplies and Materials 7,125 (1,787) 5,338 5,338

Other Objects 2,550 (481) 2,069 2,039

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services School Administration 406,264 14,674 420,938 420,764 174

5l



-68-

BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund

Reouired Suoplementary Information

Budgetary Comoarison Schedule

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201 8

Original Budget
Budget Modifications

Exhibit C-I
(7)

Variance

Positive (Negative)

Actual Final to Actual
EXPENDITURES (CONT'D):

GENERAL CIJRRENT EXPENSE (CONT'D):

Undistributed Expenditures - Administrative Information Technology:
Purchased Technical Services

Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Administrative Information Technology

Undistributed Expenditures - Required Maintenance:

Salaries

Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff
Cleaning, Repair & Maintenance Services

Lead Testing of Drinking Water

General Supplies

Other Objects

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Required Maintenance

Undistributed Expenditures - Custodial Services:

Salaries

Salaries of Non-Instructional Aides

Unused Vacation Palment to TerminatedlRetired Staff
Cleaning, Repair & Maintenance Services

Other Purchased Property Services

Insurance

General Supplies

Energy (Natural Gas)

Energy (Electricity)

Other Objects

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Custodial Services

Undistributed Expenditures - Security:

Salaries

Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Ceneral Supplies

Other Objects

Total - Undistributed Expenditures - Security

Total - Operation and Maintenance ofPlant Services

t02,666 (14,1 84) 88.482 86,467

$ 90,s88

5,950

6,128

$ (10,684)

(3,s00)

Final

Budget

s 79,904

2,450

6,128

s 79,73s $

1,6't0

5,062

169

780

1,066

2,01s

l5l,175
10,000

167,250

42,000

1,301

(3,36e)

8,000

2,3 18

(3,000)

t52,476

6,631

t75,250
2,318

39,000

146,91t

174,017

37,0t3
5,816

5,565

6,631

2,318

r,987

r,559

377,800 5,250 383,050 363.757 t9,293

403,400

10,000

32,700

5s,000
164,000

47,500

93,000

277,000

2,500

(3le)
24,069
(9,000)

(4,s49)
1,549

(2,000)

403,081

24,069

I,000
28,t51
56,549

t64,000

45,500

93,000

277,000

2,500

383,328

24,069

,Á t50

56,549

t43,907

41,054

70,85 I
208,207

662

19,753

1,000

1,992

20,093

4,446

22,149

68,793

1,838

1,085,100 9,750 l,094,850 954,786 140,064

37,900

78,200

2,500

1,000

(2s)
5.446

37,900

78,175

7,946

1,000

37,800

75,178

7,946

229

100

2,997

771

r 19,600 5,421 125,021 l2l,153 3,868

1,582,500 20.421 1,602,921 1,439,696 t6f ,225
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund

Required Supplementary Information
Budeetary Comoarison Schedule

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2018

Original Budget

Budget Modifications

Exhibit C-l
(8)

Variance

Positive (Negative)

Actual Final to Actual
Final

Budget
EXPENDITURES (CONT'D):

GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE (CONT'D):

Student Transportation Services:

Salaries of Non-lnstructional Aides

Salaries for Pupi¡ Transportation (Between Home & School) - Spec. Ed.

Salaries for Pupil Transportation (Other than Between Home & School)
Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff
Cleaning, Repair, & Maintenance Services

Contracted Services (Other Than Home & School) - Vendors
Contracted Services (Special Education Students) - Vendors
Contracted Services (Special Education Students) - Joint Agreements

General Supplies

Total Student Transportation Services

Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits:
Social Security Contribution

Other Retirement Contributions - PERS

Other Retirement Contributions - Regular

Unemployment Contribution
Workmen's Compensation

Health Benefits

Tuition Reimbursements

Other Employee Benefits

Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff
Unused Sick Payment to Prior Employees

Total Unallocated Benefits - Emplovee Benefits

On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions - Normal (Non-Budgeted)

On-behalf TPAF Medical Contributions (Non-Budgeted)

On-behalf TPAF Long-Term Disability Insurance (non-budgeted)

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions (Non-Budgeted)

Total TPAF Contributions

Total Undistributed Expenses

Interest on Maintenance Reserve

Total Expenditures - Cunent Expense

$ 39,900

76,750

5,300
t 2,1 00

243,000

9,000

8,000

$ 39,2s6
(40,97s)

t,719
I,000

I 33,400

(s,372)

$ 79,156

1,719

6,300

12,100

376,400

3,628

8,000

$ 43,49s $

13,027

1,719

531

10,555

320,031

2,700

5,327

35,661

22,748

5,769
I 5¿S

56,369

928
) â11

394,050 129,028 523,078 397,38s 125,693

165,000

160,000

2,000

2s,000

191,500

2,489,900

26,000

76,000

32,818

18 r,363

16t,331
2,386

20,000

177,754

2,399,162

25,567

86,428

66,218

9,746

34,361
t02

16,363 l8 r,363
1,331 16l,33l
386 2,386

(s,000) 20,000
(4,000) 187,s00

(56,377) 2,4t3,s23
(331) 2s,669

10,428 86,428
(32,8 l 8)
66,218 66,218

3,168,218 (3,800) 3,164,418 3,120,209 44,209

961,603

621,079

1,642

525,849

(96 1,603)

(621,079)

(1,642)
(szs,849)

2,110,173 (2,110,173)

9,713,055 41,012 9,754,067 11,140,210 ( r ,386,1 63)

2,470 (2,470)

15,975,962 q ?ss 15,985,217 17,245,237 (1,260,020)
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Exhibit C-l
(e)

Variance

Positive (Negative)

Actual Final to Actual

$ 12,459 S 177

31,094
175,933

3,043

Original

Budget

$ 12,565

3,043
289,544

1,63 1

Budget

Modifications

$71
31,094

175,933

(289,s44)
(1,63 l )

Final

Budget

$ 12,636
31,094

t75,933

3,043

EXPENDITURES (CONT'D):

CAPITAL OUTLAY:
Equipment:

Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction
Undistributed Expenditures - School Administration
Undistributed Expenditures - Required Maintenance for School

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services:

Assessment for Debt Service on SDA Funding
Increase in Capital Reserve
Interest Deposit to Capital Reserve

Total Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Calculation of Defi ciency of Revenues Under Expenditures:

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, June 30

Recapitulation:

Restricted Fund Balance:

Capital Reserve

Maintenance Reserve

Maintenance Reserve - Designated for Subsequent Yeafs Expenditures

Excess Surplus Previous Year - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures

Excess Surplus - Current Year

Assigned Fund Balance:

Designated for Subsequent Yea/s Expenditures

Unassigned Fund Balance

Reconciliation to Govemmental Funds Statements (GAAP):

Last State Aid Payment Not Recognized on GAAP Basis

Fund Balance per Govemmental Funds (GAAP)

306,783 (84,077) 222,706 t?t <to

16,282,745 (74,822) 16,207,923 17,467,766 (1,2s9,843)

(824,926) 74,822 (7s0, l 04) 319,752 1,069,856

3,772,760 1,772,760 3,772,760

$2,947,834 74,822 s3,022,6s6 94,092,sr2 1,069,856

g 948,s72

786,501

211,500

746,232

931,219

65,877

402,611

4,092,512

(422,29r)

s3,670,221

t77
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund

Required Supplementary Information
Budsetary Comparison Schedule

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Original Budget Final
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual

Exhibit C-2

Variance

Positive (Negative)

Final to Actual
REVENUES:

Federal Sources:

Title I, Part A
Title II, Part A
I.D.E.A., Part B Basic

I.D.E.A., Part B, Preschool Incentive

Total - Federal Sources

Local Sources

Total Revenues

ÐGENDITURES:

Instruction:
Salaries

Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Total Instruction

Support Services:

Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

$ 498,393 S 44,758 $ 543,151 $ 543,150

$ 208,996

32,005
)51 ?A)

$ 21,095

844

14,519

7,300

$ 230,091

32,849

27l,9ll
7,300

$ 230,090

32,849

271,911
7,300

498,393 47 75R

1,000

542,151

1,000

542,150

1,000

fi t72,057
250,010

$ 20,582

21,901

l,l l6

s192,639 $ 192,638

27l,9rl 27l,9ll
1,1 16 l,l 16

422,067 ¿? 500 465,666 465,665

44,321

18,005

10,000

4,000

315

995

(lsl)

44,636

19,000

10,000

3,849

44,636
19,000

10,000

3,849

76,326 1,159 77,485 '77,485

$ 498,393 S 44,758 $ 543,151 $ 543,150
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Exhibit C-3

BOROUGH OF' PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information

Budeetary Comparison Schedule

Note to RSI
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditure

Special

General Revenue

Fund Fund

Sources / Inflows of Resources:

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenues" from the

budgetary comparison schedules $ 17,787,518 $ 543,150

Differences - Budget to GAAP:
The last State aid payment is recognized as revenue for budgetary pu{poses,

and differs from GAAP which does not recogntze this revenue until the
subsequent year when the State recognizes the related expense (GASB 33)
received luly,20I7 . 408,739

The last State aid payment is recognized as revenue for budgetary purposes,

and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this revenue until the
subsequent year when the State recognizes the related expense (GASB 33)
received Ju1y,2018. (422,291)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds 8 17,773,966 $ 543,150

Uses / Outflows of Resources:

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from the

budgetary comparison schedule and Total expenditures as reported on the
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds (B-2) s t7,467,766 $ 543,150
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School District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability

School District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

School District's Covered Payroll (Plan Measurement Period)

School District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

Liability as a Percentage of it's Covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability

-t5-

BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the School District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Public Employees' Retirement Svstem (PERS)

Measurement Date Endi

Note: This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.

However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, this presentation will only include information
for those years for which information is available.

2017

0.017233%

4,011,459

1,222,176

328.22%

48.10%

2016

0.016815%

4,979,985

r,205,316

413.17%

40.14%

2015

June 30,

0.016885%

3,790,247

l,23l,gg4

307.65%

47.93%

$

$

Exhibit L-l

2014

0.019718%

3,691,696

1,451,229

254.38%

s2.08%

2013

$

q

0.017492%

3,343,179

1,279,936

261.40%

48.72%



Contractually Required Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the

Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

School District's Covered Payroll (Fiscal Year)

Contributions as a Percentage of
School District's Covered Pawoll

-74-

BOROUGH OF' PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the School District's Contributions
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Measurement Date Endi

Note: This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.

Howevet, until a full 1O-year trend is compiled, this presentation will only include information
for those vears for which information is available.

$ 161,331

(161,331)

s

2017 2016

$ 1s9,641

(r59,641)

s

1,222,176

13.20%

2015

June 30

149,379

(149,378)

1,205,376

13.24%

Exhibit L-2

s 145,162

(145,t62)

$

2014

r,237,994

12.t2%

$ 162,550

(162,550)

$

2013

7,451,228

10.00%

1,279,936

12.71%



School District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability

School District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

School District's Covered Payroll (Plan Measurement Period)

School District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

Liability as a Percentage of it's Covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability

-/ì-

BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the School District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Teachers' Pension and Annuit)¡ Fund (TPAF)

Measurement Date Endin

Note: This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.

However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, this presentation will only include information
for those years for which information is available.

2017

0.062s43%

42,168,704

6,656,839

633.46%

25.4lYo

2016

0.0623s7%

49,053,745

7,507,596

2015

0.0618s6%

39,095,730

7,181,012

544.43%

28.7r%

June 30,

653.39%

2233%

Exhibit L-3

2014

0.058143%

31,075,683

7,275,052

427.15%

33.64%

2013

0.062280y,

31,476,019

6,"102,376

469.62%

33.76%
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Exhibit L-4
BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Required Supplementarv Information
Schedule of School District's Contributions

Teachers'Pension and Annuitv Fund (TPAF)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

This schedule is not applicable.

The School District is not required to make any contributions towards TPAF.

There is a special funding situation where the State of New Jersey pays 100% of the required contributions.



NOTES TO THE REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION PART III
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Exhibit L-5
BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Notes to Required Supplementary Information - Part III
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Teachers'Pension and Annuitv Fund (TPÄF)

Changes in Benefrt Terms - None

Changes in Assumptions - For 2017, the discount rate changed to 4.25o/o and the long-term expected rate of return
changed To 7.00Yo. Further, the demographic assumptions were revised to reflect those recommended on the basis of the
July1,2012-June30,2015experiencesfudy. For20l6,thediscountratechangedto3.22Yo.For20l5,thediscount
rate changed to 4.13o/o. For 2014, the discount Íate was af,4.68%o.

Public Emploveesr Retirement Svstem (PERS)

Changes in Bene-fìt Terms - None

Changes in Assumptions -For 2017, the discount rate changed to 5.00o/o, the long-term expected rate of return changed
to 7 .00o/o. Further, salary increases were assumed to increase between 1.65% and 4.150/o (based on age) through hscal
year 2026 and2.65%o and 5.15%o (based on age) for each fiscal year thereafter. For 2016 the discount rate changed to
3.98%. For 2015, the discount rate changed Io 4.90%o.ln addition, the social security wage base was set at $118,500 for
2015,increasing 4.00% per alìnum, compounded annually and the a0I@)(I7) pay limit was set at $265,000 for 2015,
increasing 3.00% per annum, compounded annually. For 2014, the discount rate was 5.39%.
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Exhibit M-l
BOROUGH OF' PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Required Supplementarv lnformation - Part III
Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Emplovees Plan
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2017

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost

úrterest

Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions or other inputs

Member contributions

Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liability

Total OPEB liability - beginning

Total OPEB liability - ending

Covered-employee payroll

Total OPEB liabilify as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:

r,576,958

r,260,131

(5,169,974)

33,994

(923,t90)

(3,222,075)

43,079,843

$

$

39.8s7.768

7,g7g,ol5

s05.87%

Changes of benelìt terms: None

Changes of assumptions: The decrease in the liability from June 30,20T6 to June 30,2017 is
due to the increase in the assumed discount rate from 2.85% as of June 30.2016 to 3.58% as

ofJune 30,2017.

Note: This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10
years. However, until a full lO-year trend is compiled, this presentation will only include
information for those vears for which information is available.



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.



REVENUES:

Federal Sources

Local Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction:

Salaries

Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Total lnstruction

Support Services:

Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Purchased Profes sional and Technical S ervices

Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund

Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

NCLB

Total
Perur Medicine

Grant

$ 542,150

1,000

543,750

Title I. Part A

1,000 230,090 32.849

192,638

27I,9Il
1,1 16

1,000

Title tr, Part A Basic Preschool

46s,66s

230,090

Exhibit E-I

195,339

1,000 116

44,636

19,000

10,000

3,849

I.D.E.A. Part B

32,849 5271,911 $ 7,300

1,000

77,485

$ 543,150

185,454

27l,gl l 7,300::

$ 1,000

44,636

7,300
27l,9Il

44,636

230,090

19,000

10,000

3,849

271,911

s 32,949 $ 27l,gr1 $ 7,300

32,849

7,300



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND DETAIL STATEMENT

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and equipment purchases other than those financed by proprietary funds.



PROPRIETARY FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Proprietary Funds are used to account for operations that arc financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the district's board is
that the costs of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

Food Services Fund - This fund provides for the operation of food services in all schools
within the school district.

Alternative High School Enterprise Fund - This fund provides for the operation
of the District's Alternative High School.

Transportation Enterprise Fund - This fund provides for transportation services
provided to other local educational associations.

Related Services Enterprise Fund - This fund provides for student support services which
are provided to other local educational associations.
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietary Fund

Business-Type Activities - Entemrise Funds

Combinins Statement of Net Position
June 30.2018

Exhibit G-l

Total
After School

Program

s 306,241

Food
Service

ASSETS:

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:

State

Federal

Other

Inventories

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION:

Restricted:

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

157,214

T9I
9,663

3,709

11,560

463,455

191

8,663

3,709

11,560

187,337 306,241 487,578

302,584
(285,372)

302,584
(285,372)

17,212 17,2r2

198,549 306,241 504,790

10,531 10,531

10,531 10,531

17,272

170,806 306,241

17,212

477,047

1 88,01 g 306,241 494,259
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietary Fund

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Combininq Statement of Revenues. Expenses and Chanses in Fund Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Exhibit G.2

Total

After School

Program

$ 148,461

Food

Service

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for Services:

Daily Sales:

Non-reimbursable Programs

Reimbursable Program -- School Breakfast

Reimbursable Program -- School Lunch
Child Care Fees

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee Benefits

Management Fee

General Supplies

Direct Expenses

Depreciation

Other Professional and Technical Services

Cost of Sales - Reimbursable Programs

Cost of Sales - Non-reimbursable Programs

Total Operating Expenses

Operating lncome / (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES :

State Sources:

State School Lunch Prosram

Federal Sources:

National School Lunch Program

National School Breakfast Program

Food Distribution Prosram

lnterest Revenue

Total Nonoperating Revenues

Change in Net Position

Net Position -- July 1

Net Position -- June 30

371,481 I44,562 516,043

(206,600) 3,899.00 (202,70t)

70,848
6 677

87,396

$ 70,848

6,637

87,396

148,461

164,881 148,461 313,342

126,013

22,693

18,360

T4,T39

9,010

r,974

3,000

I53,I52
23,r40

85,814

25,000

9,319

24,429

21t,827
47,693

18,360

23,458

9,010

1,974
)1 LtA

153,r52
23,r40

4,293

165,864
?? 50?

34,7TT

r,265 2,531

4,293

1.65,864

33,502

34,711

3,796

239,635 2,53I 242,166

33,035

154,993

6,430

299,8r1

39,465

454,794

$ 188,018 $ 494,259s 306,241
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietary Fund

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Combinins Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Food

Service

After School

Program

s 148,461

(85,814)

(25,000)

(33,828)

Exhibit G3

Total

s 313,342

(18,360)

(211,827)
(47,693)

(225,554)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTTVITIES:
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Management Company

Payments to Employees

Payments for Employee Benefits

Pa)¡ments for Supplies and Services

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
State Sources

Federal Sources

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-Capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Revenue

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents -- July I

Cash and Cash Equivalents -- June 30

Reconciliation of Operating lncome (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used)

by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided by (used for) Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Net Amortization
(lncrease) Decrease in Accounts Receivable

(Increase) Decrease in lnventories
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

12,689 (80) 12,609

$ (ttr,ttD $ ,,* $ 01,tÐ

$ 164,881

(18,360)

(t26,0t3)
(22,693)

(191,726)

(193,911) 3,819 (t90,092)

4,293

234,077

4,293
)74 0',7',7

238,370 238,370

1,265 2,531 3,796

45',7)4

lrl,490

6,350

299,891

52,074

4l l,3gl

s 157,214 s 306.241 $ 463,45s

$ (206,600)

1,974

2,260

497

7,958

3,899 s (202,701)

1,974

2,560

497

7,578

300

(380)



FIDUCIARY FUNDS DETAIL STATEMENTS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the School District for a specif,rc
purpose.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the School District as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments anLlor other funds.

Student Activity Fund - This agency fund is used to account for student funds
held at the schools.
Payroll Fund - This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions of the
school district.
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Exhibit H-l

BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds

Combinine Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30.2018

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Interfund Accounts Receivable:

Due From Special Revenue Fund

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Interfund Accounts Payable:

Due General Fund

Payable to Student Groups

Flexible Spending Reserve

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION:

Restricted:

Private-Purpose

Trust Fund Agency Funds 
l

Unemployment
Compensation Student

Insurance Activity Payroll Total

$ 158,924 $ tr2,997 $ 3,905 $ 275,826

20,000 20,000

158,924 t32,997 3,905 295,826

r32,997

aa
JJ

r32,997

3,902 3,902

$ 132,997 $ 3,905 $ 136,902

Held in Trust for Payment of Claims $ 158,924
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciarv Funds

Private-Purpose Trust Fund
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Exhibit II-2

Unemployment
Compensation

Insurance

Trust Fund

36,469

5 70?

30,766

128,158

158,924

ADDITIONS:
Interest on Úrvestments

Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions

Total Additions

DELETIONS:
Withdrawals

Change in Net Position

Net Position -- July 1

Net Position -- June 30

I,205
20,000

15,264
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds

Student Activit]' Agenc)¡ Fund Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Interfund

Accounts
Receivable

Cash

Disbursements

Exhibit H-3

Balance

June 30,2018

Balance

June 30, 2017

$ 5,828

r1,206
57,780

21,153

Cash

Receipts

$ 1,917

12,168

122,737

30,895

District Administration
Charles Street School

High School

Scholarships

Total All Schools

20,000

$ 6,603

11,440

ll7,l05
9,539

$ 1,142

11,934

57,412

62,509

$ 89,967 s t67,717 $ 20,000 s 144,687 s 132,997
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds

Payroll Agency Fund Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Balance

June 30,2017 Additions Deletions

Exhibit H-4

Balance

June 30,2018

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Payroll Deductions and V/ithholdings
Net Payroll

Flexible Spending Reserve

Interfund Accounts Payable:

Due General Fund

Total Liabilities

76,878 $ r1,497,201 s tL,s70,174 3,905

76,878 $ 17,497,207 s 1r,570,174 3,905

65,435

TT,443

5,905,063
5 57? ?ss

19,783

5,970,498
s 57? 155

15,881

11,440

3,902

3

76,878 $ 1r,497,20r s rr,570,174 3,905



LONG.TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term Schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the
general long-term liabilities of the school district. This includes serial bonds outstanding
and obligations under capital leases.



School District Bonds -

Series 2009 10-15-09

School District Refunding
Bonds - Series 2016 09-14-16

Issue
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BOROUGH OF PALI\{YRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Serial Bonds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Annual Maturities
Date of

Issue

Amount of
Issue

$ 9,883,000

8,365,000

Date

Interest

Amount Rate

03-01-19

03-01-19

03-01-20

03-01-21

03^01-22

03-0t-23
03-0r-24
03-01-25

03-01-26
03-01-27

03-01-28

03-0t-29
03-01-30

$ 400,000

495,000

885,000

925,000

480,000

635,000

640,000

640,000

640,000

635,000

635,000

625,000

625,000

Balance

June 30,2017

4.00%

3.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.s0%
3.00%
350%
3s0%

800,000

Issued

Exhibit I-1

Retired

$ 400,000

Balance

June 30. 2018

8,365,000

$ 9,165,000

400,000

$ 505,000 $ 7,960,000

$ 905,000 $ 8,260,000
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Debt Service Fund

Budeetary Comparison Schedule

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Original Budget

Budeet Transfers+

Exhibit I-3

Variance

Positive (Negative)

Actual Final to Actual
Final

Budget

REVENUES:

Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy
State Sources:

Debt Service Aid Type II

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Regular Debt Service:

Interest on Bonds

Redemption of Principal

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operating Transfers In:

Total Other Financing Sources

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other

Financing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and

Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance, July I

Fund Balance, June 30

$ 1,042,046

t76,428

st,042,046 s1,042,046

176,428 176,428

1 )19.474 t,218,474 1,218,474

905,000

313,97s

905,000 905,000

1,218,975

(501)

s 25,004

Recapitulation of Excess @eficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures:

Restricted Fund Balance

t,2t8,97s 1,218,975

(501) (s01)

(501)

?< <n{

(s01)

?5 505

(s01)

2s,s}s

$ 25,004 $ 25,004

25,004



STATISTICAL SECTION



Covernmental Activities :

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted

Unrestricted (Deficit)

rotalGovernmentalActivitiesNetPosition_$.1,806f92_ _ïJ_26J23s_ _ï_J66JJJ_ _$_208224_ _q!É.1!¿2I_ _ï2eLlll2_ _q!,0g2,3?:_ _92,578326_ $2,183,(

Business-type Activities:
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unreshicted

rotalBusiness-typeActivitiesNetPosition _9__4e!2s2_ _ïJ54!2:_ _9_A212!_ S_]4eAee_ _$._2qqq_ _$__?qryl _ï__20!Ae!_ l_21l€l_ $ 180,j

2018 2017 2016
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRÀ SCHOOL DISTRICT
Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

Government-wide:

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Govemment-wide Net Position

92,543,3s1 51,769,218 51,967,127 $ 1,687,809 $ 1,504,616 $ 1,450,787 5 t,410,647 $ 868,901 $ 905,874 52,034,468
3,649,028 3,159,870 2,998,9s5 2,640,525 2,329,781 t,679,066 1,922,185 2,063,474 t,g3o,62l 2,651,616
(4,385,670) (3,667,8s3) (4,199,304) (4,120,110) (224,102) (142,t41) (2s0,4s9) (3s4,04s) (652,81 l) (62s,620)

Source: Exhibit A-1

In accordance with GASB 65, effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 3, the method to expense debt issuance costs was changed.

ForthefiscalyearendedJune30,20l5,theSchoolDistrictadoptedGASBSNo.s.68and7l,whichrequiredtheSchoolDistrict
in the govemment-wide financial statements. Balances prior to June 30,2015 are shown as originally reported and have not been restated for this adoption.

$ t7 ,212 $ 1 9,1 86 $ 21,403

477,047 435,609 390,792

$ 2,s60,s63
3,649,028

(3,908,623)

$ 2,300,968

2015

$ 1,788,404

3,1 59,870
(3,232,244)

_$!_Lqpiq_

2Ot4 2or 1

s 26,s37 S 31,922 $ 22,0s2 g 30,266
322,962 248,229 186,763 174,228

$ 1,988,530

2,998,9ss
(3,808,s I 2)

_ïJIJ\s72_

s 1,714,346

2,640,525

(3,797,148)

s ss1,723

2012 2011 2010

$ l,536,538
2,329,781

24,126

_q_ii2941l_

Exhibit J-l

s 1,472,839 $ 1,440,913 $ 877,868
1,679,066 t,922,185 2,063,474

44,622 (76,23r) (151,565)

_ï:]25én_ _qt2q6,8Éz_ Åu\efll_

$ 8,967 $ 13,269
202,484 167,318

2009

$ 19,187

189,240

$ 919,143

1,930,621

(48s,493)

-u;64271_

$ 2,0s3,6s5

2,651,616
(440,380)

s 4,264,891



EXPENSES:

Govemmental Activities:
Instruction:

Regular

Special Education

Other Special Education

Support Services:

Tuition
Student and lnstruction Related Services

School Administrative Seruices

General and Business Adminístrative Services

Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation

Unallocated Benefits

Special Schools

lnterest on Long-term Debt
Unallocated Depreciation

Total Govemmental Activities Expenses

Business-type Activities:
Food Service

After School Program

Total Business-type Activities Expense

Total Govemment Expenses

PROGMMREVENUES:
Govemmental Activities:

Operating Grants and Contributions

Charges for Services

Total Govemental Activities Program Revenues

Business-type Activities:
Charges for Services:

Food Service

After School Program

Operating Grants and Contributions

Total Business-type Activities Program Revenues

Total Govemment Program Revenues

NET (EXPENSEYREVENUE:

Govemmental Activities
Business-type Activities

Total Govement-wide Net Expense
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Accrual Basis ofAccounting)
(Unaudited)

s 4,432,s35

1,615,646

548,518

1,295,971

1,752,793

423,498

690,026

2,239,552

397,385

8,664,268

434,809

$ 4,391,258

t,617,712
726,868

I,380,458

1,619,126

413,584

796,722

1,544,631

370,634

7,889,694

298,544

s 4,897,047

1,683,8s6

s91,072

I,4s0,814
1,525,066

403,066

713,233

1,417,720

289,333

6,198,1 35

395,020

22,495,001

37 t,481
144,562

s16,043

_!21r11p11_

s 4,611,312

1,438,398

6,049,710

313,342

164,881

148,461

238,370

551,712

J__9Soy22_

s(l 6,445,291 )
35,669

J!5,40e,62Ð-

s s,240,728

1,416,9s1

522,80s

1,37 1,1 05

l,6s1,l l7
s09,522

942,828

t,487,968
316,263

4,062,962

427,371

21,049,23t

371,310

132,72s

504,03s

_!.2]5s3266_

$ s,304,s67

I,103,4s7

6,408,023

160,491

154,699

237,138

5s2,328

_!__q¿!gig_

s(l 4,64 l,208)
48,294

_palsezzlÐ_

s 4,685,701

1,420,120

487,942

1,425,581
1 56a)41

368,970

838,53 1

1,433,716

294,760

3,603,120

448,970

19,s64,36t

364,319

I 19,501

483,820

_!2g!t!J_ql

s 4,043,731

1,361,1 93

5,404,925

146,001

148,7 t4
251,721

546,436

_q__:f¡Ë!q_

s( l 4,1 s9,43?)

62,616

_qgp29f2u

s 4,736,984

1,682,763

427,228

1,064,s17

1,584,884

502,060

690,948

1,410,294

3 10,5 14

3,888,106

473,181

t7,949,62t

348,434

I 14,003

462,437

_s_.¡_91t2!I!_

$ 1,910,537

1,749,865

3,660,402

138,63s

165,802

227,293

531,731

_s1122¡!3_

s( 14,289,2 l 9)

69,293

_þ!!212e2Ð

s 4,297,173 S 4,s42,144
1,597,824 1,228,609
334,898 310,407

987,665 1,068,813
1,662,108 1,42't,491
s03,830 484,710
s6s,790 521,374

1,337,947 I,840,879
2s3,947 315,102

3,491,252 3,278,700

488,934 562,219
597 ,286 t 9,3 I 8

t6,l 18,654 15,599,76616,572,653

365,504

96,814

462,317

_!_l]'011¿zq_

$ 1,6s9,253

I,853,20t

3,5t2,454

146,565

152,379

2t9,204

5 I 8,148

_$_1,03$92_

s(l 3,060, l 99)

55,83 I

_$11!!91¡!Ð.
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t6,'771,480

3s4,224

131,48s

485,710

_g_11¿IZJ_q2_

s 1,907,858

1,800,427

3,708,285

143,416

128,924

217,621

489,960

_!_!2q4¡_

s( l 3,063,r 9s)
4,251

_sgl,0:q¿1CI-

$ 4,846,951 S 4,652,891

1,319,211 1,354,492

387,277 408,698

827,8s5

I,524,423
467 ,671
638,261

1,493,770

306,731

3,159,569

193,289

703,617

34s,900

63,624

409,s24

_!lq4!Jl!_

s 1,869,015

I,740,648

3,609,663

I 45,386

116,270

20s,030

466,686

_9_1,073-4e_

$(r 2,s08,99r )
57,162

s(l 2,45 l,829)

929,455

1,483,964

466,s58

621,490

1,389, l s0
'1LJ )1\

2,951,2't6

174,789

267,642

126,210

t 5, I 68,850

300,2s3

81,640

381,893

_!_llë911i_

s 1,492,374
1,423,288

2,915,662

l6s,975
86, I l3

128,120

380,208

_!__1¿2¡.q29_

s( l 2,253,r 88)
(1,68s)

_q!¿¡,gz¿

320,327

64,104

384,43 I

_!_1lfg1J_22_

s 1,794,424

1,728,342

3,s22,766

152,888

93,683

167,3 I 8

413,889

_$__3.¿¡9ÍI_

$( l 2,077,000)

29,458

-9!2p4U4Ð_

I 5,868,625

336,756

I 16,010

452,766

_!.1!t?1t21_

$ 1,839,864
'1,606,803

3,446,667

I 57,885

93,st7
172,116

423,518

_q__$lgJ_q!_

s( l 2,421,9s8)
(29,248)

s(l 2,45 I ,206)



cENERAL REvENUES AND oTHER cHANcES lN trnftTiliõÑ-
Govemmental Activities:

PropertyTaxesLeviedforGeneralPurposes,Ner $9,181,593 s8,806,464 s8,633,789 s8,155,162 s7,586,442 57,225,184TaxesleviedforDebtservice 1,042,046 1,094,439 948,158 948,158 967,890 925.603
uffestricted Grants and contributions 6,749,597 5,097,356 5,041,154 5,033,439 5,073,565 4,937,350
Invesinent Eamings 35,078 3,729 4,171 3,747 2,700Other %,979 133,678 90,718 B},S2Z 70.339 17.790
Disposal ofAssets
Transfers

Total Govemmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Investment Eamings

Contribution of Capital Assets

Transfers

Total Business-type Activities 3,796 I l0 80 15,506 69 (64,1 19) 1,406

rotalcovemenÈwide _!_¡fJ!:6,08e $ 1s,13s,7?6 $ 14,?t8,070 _$_l3?igig?_ _uÍ2q¿!z_ _!_!49É2q_ _!_!gg¿p_ _s_¡2421p19_

CHANGE IN NET POSITION:

GovemmentalActivities s 657,002 $ 494,458 $ 558,553 S (5s,89t) g 622,582 g 45,432 S 504,047 S 394,642
Business-type Activities 39,465 48,404 62,696 69,348 71,336 4,320 (6,957) 30,864

Totalcoverilnent g 696,467 S 542,861 S 621,249 $ 10,4j? $ 693,919 S 49,752 S 497,090 S 425,506

Source: Exhibit A-2

In accordance with GASB 65, effective for the fiscal year ended Ju¡re 30, 2013, the method to expense debt issuance costs was changed.
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Accrual Basis ofAccountinq)
(Unaudired)

1',1,102,293 15,135,666 14,'11'7,990 14,230,328 13,682,782 13,108,627 13,013,038

in the govemment-wide financial statements. Balances prior to June 30, 201 5 are shown as originally reported and have not been restated for this adoption.

3;196

(1 5,454)

52

1s,454

s 7,225,184

92s,603

4,725,939

I,182
35,263

(133)

100,000

$ 7,151,345 g 6,972,447 S 6,780,632
999,442 524,190 380,547

4,267,162 4,5s0,482 4,7s4,902
9,34s 67,282 50,088

44,348 83,872 58,301

Exhibit J-2
(Continued)

99

25,782
(90,000)

12,471,642 12,198,273 12,024,470

1,406 1,408 1,141

t,408 1,141

$ 12,199,68t S 12,025,611

$ (223,68s) $ (228,718)
(27,840) (544)

$ (2sr,525) S (229,262)



General Fund:

Restricted

Assigned

Unassigned (Deficit)

Total General Fund

All Other Covernmental Funds:

Assigned

Restricted, Reported in:
Debt Service Fund

Total All Other Governmental Funds
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fund Balances. Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Unaudited)

201 8

s3,624,024
65,8'7'7

(re,680)

J],679,nl

Source: Exhibit B-l

In accordance with GASB 54, effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 1, the description and terminology utilized to identifu fund balance was changed.

2017

$3,134,365
24s,s06
(1 s,8s0)

s3,364,021

2016

$3,373,278
40,370

(23,s68)

$3,390,080

$ 25,004

$ 25,004

201s

{? o5r R?7

86,984

(71,432)

$3,067,389

$ 2s,50s

$ 25,505

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.

20t4 2013 2012 2011 2010

$ 501

$ 501

$2,329,780
132,294

(33,661)

J2A284r3

$ 501

$ 5ol

$ 1,849,780 $ 1,302,191

68,875 619,994
(90,8 r7) (72,123)

_$_1,8?zJ3!_ _qugge_

$1

_$_______l_

$t

$ r,418,045

623,096
(s2,148)

_$_uqg22i_

$ 354

Exhibit J-3

$1$-$3s4

sl,647,394
206,982

(122,966)

_$1131419_

s 76,24s

2009

$ 1,509,127

501,1 1 1

(l 82,530)

_q$?,?0q_

$ 641,378

s 76,245 $ 641,378



REVENUES:

Tax Levy

Other Local Revenue

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction
Regular Instruction
Special Education lnstruction
Other Special Insfuction

Support Services:

Tuition
Student and Instruction Related Services

School Administrative Services

Other AdrninisÍative Services

Plant Operations and Maintenance

Pupil Trmsportation

Unallocated Benefits
Debt Service:

Principal

Interest and Other Charges

Special Schools

Capital Outlay

Total Expendihues

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditr-ues

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Proceeds from Issuance ofRefunding Bonds

Premiun from Issuance of Refiurding Bonds

Payment to Refunded Debt Escrow Agent
Transfers In

Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Debt Service as a Percentage of
Non-capital Expenditures

Source: Exhibit B-2

Chanses in Fund Balances. Govemmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years (Modified Accrual Basis ofAccountine)

(Unaudited)

$ 10,223,639

r,567,455

7,175,'737

s68,7 59

I 9,53 5,590

4,406,508

1,6t5,646

548,5 1 8

1,295,971

1,744,009

420,',764

689,508

1,439,696

397,385

s,230,382

90s,000

3r3,975

))) 1)O

,r*-

305,699

$ 9,900,903

1,263,263

6,848,984

570,'718

I 8,s83,868

4,348,615
1,617,712

726,868

I,380,458
1,5'75,495

386,961
'791,826

1,441,720

370,634

4,639,523

910,000

353,044

162,413

18,'705,269

(121,401)

8,365,000

872,094
(9,116,149)

2016

$9,581,947
r,456,082

6,s90,'196

606,194

18,235,019

4,409,816

1,683,856

591,072

1,450,814

1,s40,934

426,397

628,642

1,338,401

294,129

4,237,291

885,000

405,405

20,s70

17,912,328

322,691

$ 9, I 03,320

1,843,434

6,342,142

60 1,834

t7,890,730

4,268,397

1,416,951

5 I 4,858

1,371,105

t,613,266

464,598

762,944
1,387,803

311,46't

3,902,021

720,000

431,168

86,677

l7,251,254

639,476

2014 2013

$ 8,5s4,332

1,923,540

6,1 80,5 1 3

552,304

l7,210,690

4,191,463

1,420,120

487,942

1,425,581

1,558,038

368,797

141,803
1,323,0'77

294,760

3,603,120

725,000
451,918

18,497

t6,610,114

600,575

Ended June

$ 8,1s0,787

t,820,917

6,234,002

603,065

16,808,771

4,300,228
1,675,457

4)1 ))R

1,064,517

1,s76,677

501,863

594,238

1,299,136

3 10,s 14

3,888,1 06

705,000

476,393

I 1,639

l 6,830,99s

(22,223)

2012

$ 8,1s0,787

1,777,093

5,814,744

780,210

16,s22,834

4,400,577

1,597,824

334,898

987,66s
1,662,108

469,404

531,363

1,274,658

246,s82

3,491,252

660,000

494,067

633,700

I 6,784,098

(261,264)

2011

$ 8,1s0,787

1,782,035

5,382,3 19

679,267

15,994,408

4,683,486
1,228,609

310,407

1,068,813

1,427,491

450,862

487,s25

1,237,806

31s,102

3,278,700

640,000

634,290

27,646

15,790,731

203.671

Exhibit J-4

_q___1glÉ2_ _$___GgIÐ _ï__3n,6el_ _þ__632475-

6.41% 6.810/o 7.210/o 6.71%

2010

s7,496,637
I 7<7 0{{
4,975,970

1,414,376

15,644,938

4,939,279

t,3 19,1 56

386,271

827,855

1,521,822

466,664

630,738

t,t3'7,642

306,731

3, r 59,569

325,000

423,702

193,289

668,65 l

16,306,369

(661,43 r)

t20,345

2009

151,154

(151,154)

$7 ,161,179
1,531,677
\1\) Al7

494,863

14,940,132

4,673,552
1 'r,<¿. ¿q)

408,698

929,455

1,483,964

466,558

593,468

1,24s,449
1)9. r)¿,

2,951,276

29s,000

216,004

174,789

9,413,263

24,534,192

(9,s94,060)

9,883,000

43,860

(43,860)

9,883,000

_q__q9941_ J__Q2223)_ ÅL1!!299_ _9__203,67J_

7.09% 7.02% 7.15% 8.08%

44 )4\
(44,24s)

100,000

100,000

136,649

(136,649)

_q_ÉÉ141U _q__288819_

4;79% 3.38%



Interest on lnvestments

Tuition
Transportation Fees

Shared Services

Commissions

Municipal Share of Costs

Solar Energy Rebate

Rental/Lease of Facilities
Prior Year E-Rate

Prior Year Refunds

Athletics
Sale of Assets

Miscellaneous

Total Miscellaneous Revenues

Source: District Records
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BOROUGH OF PALIVTYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2018 2017

$ 35,078

1,438,398
s 3,729

1,103,4s7

5,918

2016 2015

s8,041

t4,920
19,s30

488

_q],566,4ss_

s 4,171

1,361,193

5? 550

42,196
13,034

I 3,895

22,670

4,814

_st263263_

s 3,747

1,749,865

20t4 2013

38,914

29,581

l5,gl7

6,305

$ 1,456,082

$ 2,889

1,853,201

1,800

49,074

14,228
t1 <r<

4,195

st,843,434

$ 2,700

1,800,427

3,699

17,687

40,731

s 11?

_u,eæé19_

2012 20rt 2010

$ 1,182

1,140,648

7,130

s00

12,636

4 6<4

_qlI?q2-!]_

Exhibit J-5

$ 18,553

1,728,342

16,000

855

12,202

15,076

JJJll,0e]_

$ 81,195

1,606,803

205

12,841

6,094

-qLZq?PL

2009

18,748

36,288

10,9s2

3,969

st,757,955

$ 63,928

1,423,288

43,624

837

$1,531,677



Year
Ended

Dec.31 VacantLand Residential

2018 $ 4,74s,800 $

2017 4,696,800

2016 4,719,400

20t5 4,719,400

2014 4,719,400

2013 (1) 4,786,000

20t2 4,036,900
20t1 4,038,900
2010 3,945,700
2009 3,888,800

408,349,37s $ $32,396,800$
408,717,07s s,s00 32,223,300
409,t21,97s s,s00 32,492,300
409,719,630 5,500 32,778,100
410,223,830 5,500 32,s99,300
4l 1,186,330 5,500 32,858,100

268,39s,31s 27,800 19,347,300
268,830,970 27,800 19,431,900

2't1,283,170 35,000 18,910,400

271,442,170 89,900 19,221,800

Total
Assessed Public

Farm Cornmercial Industrial Apartment Value Utilities (2)

(1) Revaluation
(2) Taxable Value of Machinery, Implements and Equiprnent of Telephone, Telegraph and Messenger System Companies.
(3) Tax Rates areper $100.00 of Assessed Valuation.

Source: Burlington County Board ofTaxation
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Prooe4v

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

10,506,300 $ 20,916,100 $ 476,914,37s S

10,579,000 20,876,400 477,098,075
10,648,100 20,876,400 47'7,863,6'75

10,706,100 20,816,400 478,745,130
10,715,100 20,86s,900 479,129,030
10,790,100 21,033,600 480,659,630
7,042,500 12,942,600 311,792,41s
7,588,900 t2,942,600 312,861,070
6,000,400 t3,047,200 313,22t,870
6,250,400 13,160,400 314,0s3,470

94

94

93

91

284,018
478,375

285,208
278,442

326,992
328,736

NetValuation Tax-Exempt
Taxable Pronertv

476,9t4,469 $

477,098,169

477,863,768

478,745,221

479,413,048
48 1,138,005

312,077,623

313,r39,512
313,548,862
314,382,206

s2,333,400

52,271,600

s2,300,600

52,1 I 0,800

52,1 6 1,1 00

5l,354,800
31,866,102

3r,753,302
31,753,302

3t,284,102

Exhibit J-6

Estimated Actual
(County Equalized)

Value

509,197,496

s06,258,669

s15,828,76s

541,077 ,329
s30,998,49s

530,832,1s4
558,878,264

598,972,9t6
598,298,970
609,455,922

Total Direct
School Tax

Rate (3)

$ 2.17

2.14

2.0'7

2.00

1.90

1.78

2.61

2.60

2.60
2.38



Year

Ended

Dec.31

2018 $
2017
2016
2015
2014

2013 (2)
20t2
20Il
2010
2009

-94-

BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Basic Rate

District Direct Rate (1)

r.943
1.90s
1.866
r.793
1.683
r.576
2.285
2.276
2.281
2.218

General

Obligation Debt

Service

Source: Municipal Tax Collector

(1) Rate per $100 of Assessed Value
(2) Revaluation

0.228
0.237
0.20s
0.208
0.2t5
0.202
0.326
0.326
0.318
0.i66

Total Direct
School

Tax Rate

2.171
2.t42
2.071
2.001
1.898
|.778
2.611
2.602
2.599
2.384

Borough of
Palmyra

s r.224
t.200
1.188
1.177
1.16s
1.t42
1.729
1.700
t.644
t.504

Overlapping Rates (1)

Exhibit J-7

Burlington
County

g 0.429 $
0.433
0.442
0.47
0.424
0.42

0.681
0.726
0.725
0.737

Total Direct
and Overlapping

Tax Rate

3.824
3.775
3.701
3.648
3.487
3.340
5.021
5.028
4.968
4.625



Willow Shores LP/ Korman Corp. of NJ
Boss Lady, LLC
River Villas Mews, LLC
Roto Cylinders, Inc.
Nai Entertainment Holdings, LLC
Philadelphia Sign Company
Palmyra Holdings LLC
Rainer, Joseph
Paul W. Callahan, Trustee
Haroution K. Aydjian
National Amusements Inc.
Tower Management Services
David Drew Associates

Total

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Principal Propert)¡ Tax Payers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago
(Unaudired)

Taxpayer

'I'axable

Assessed
Value

11,365,900
3,500,000
2,267,600
2,247,800
2,009,000
1,809,200
1,320,600
1,197,800
7,177,700
1,053,500

201 8

Rank

I
2
J

4
5

6
7
8

9
10

o/o of Total
District Net

Assessed Value

2.38%
0.73%
0A7%
0.47%
0.42%
0.38%
0.28%
0.25%
0.25%
0.22%

27.943.100

Taxable
Assessed

Value

Exhibit J-8

$ 2,607,000
2,200,000

2009

Rank

1

2

5

aJ

r,742,600

2,046,900

792,300
736,000
912,100

7,747,700
1,540,000
1,050,000

s.86%

o/o of Tolal
District Net

Assessed Value

0.83%
0.70%
0.00%
0.55%
0.00%
0.6s%
0.00%
0.25%
023%
0.29%
0.56%
0.49%
0.33%

9
l0
8

4
6

7

15,374,600 4.89%
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Exhibit J-9

Collections in
Subsequent Years

Fiscal Year

Ended June 30,

School District
Taxes Levied

for the

Fiscal Year

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (1)

Percentage

ofLevyAmount

20r8
20t7
20t6
20r5
2014
20t3
2012
20t1
20r0
2009

s 10,223,639
g,goo,go3

9,581,947
9,103,320
8,554,332
8,150,787
8,150,787
8,150,787
7,496,637
7,161,179

g 10,223,639
9,900,903
9,581,947
9,103,320
8,554,332
8,r50,787
8,r50,787
8,150,787
7,496,637
7,16t,r79

t00%
r00%
100%
100%
r00%
100%
r00%
r00%
100%
t00%

(1) School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a
municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the
amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.

Source: District Records



Fiscal

Year Ended

June 30,
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BOROUGH OF PALIYTYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

General

Obligation

Bonds (1)

201 8
20t7
20t6
20t5
20t4
20r3
20r2
2OIT
2010
2009

Governmental Activities

8,260,000
9,165,000

10,335,000
II,220,000
11,940,000
12,665,000
13,370,000
14,030,000
14,670,000
14,995,000

Sources:

(1) District Records

(2) Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal income.
(3) Per capita personal income by county-estimated based upon the 2010 Census published

Capital

Leases

Bonds

Authorized But

not Issued

Business-Type
Activities

Capital Leases Total District

Exhibit J-10

$ 8,260,000
9,165,000

10,335,000
11,220,000
1 1,940,000
12,665,000
13,370,000
14,030,000
14,670,000
14,995,000

Percentage of
Personal

Income (2)

r99%
222%
2.5t%
2.78%
3.09%
3.38%
357%
3.83%
4.14%
4.30%

Per Capita (3)

1,144
1,269
1,429
1,54I
1,63r
7,728
1,814
1,901
1,986
2,044



Fiscal Year

Ended June 30,

General

Obligation
Bonds

Percentage of
Net Assessed

Valuation

Taxable (2)

Exhibit J-l1

Per Capita (3)
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstandins

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

General Bonded Debt Outstandine
Net General

Bonded Debt
Deductions Outstanding (1)

2018
2017
2076
20ls
2014
20t3
2012
20tt
20t0
2009

8,260,000
9,165,000

10,335,000
11,220,000
I1,940,000
12,665,000
13,370,000
14,030,000
14,670,000
14,995,000

8,260,000
9,165,000

10,335,000
11,220,000
11,940,000
12,665,000
13,370,000
14,030,000
14,670,000
14,995,000

r.62%
t.8t%
2.00%
2.07%
2.25%
2.39%
2.39%
2.34%
2.45%
2.46%

1,144
1,269
1,428
1,541
1,631
1,728
1,814
1,901
1,986
2,044

Sources:
(1) District Records
(2) Net Assessed Valuation provided by Abstract of Ratables, County Board of Taxation.
(3) Per Capita calculation based upon population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and

Workforce Develooment.



Municipal Debt: (1)
Palmyra Borough Local School District
Palmyra Borough Sewer Utility
Palmyra Borough
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of Decernber 31.2017
(Unaudited)

Overlapping Debt Apportioned to
the Municipality:

County of Burlington: (2)
General:

Bonds
Bonds Issued by Other Public Bodies

Guaranteed by the County
Solid WasteUtilitv

Gross Debt

Sources:
(1) 2017 Arwal Debt Statement
(2) County's 2017 Audit Report

9,165,000
5,366,492

13,087,739

Deductions

27,679,231

Statutory
Net
Debt

Outstanding

9,165,000
5,366,492

9tt,672

Exhibit J-12

s 651,470,666
58,925,31.0

710,395,976

15 343,164

72,276,067

s 12,276,067

Net Debt
Outstanding
Allocated to

Palmyra Borough

738,0r5,207

354,070,986
58,925,3I0

4t2.996.296

428.339.460

12,276,067

297,399,680

12,276,067

297.399.680

309.67s.747

297.399.680

297,399,680

$ 309,675,747
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
lægal Debt Margin Infonnation

l¿st Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

DebtLimit
Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit (3)

Iægal Debt Margin

Total Net Debt Applicable to the Lirnit
as a Percentage of Debt Limit

Sources:

(l) Equalized valuation bases were provided by the Annual Report ofthe State ofNew Jersey, Departrnent ofTreasuy, Division ofTaxation
(2) Limit set by NJS A 18A:24-19 for a K through 12 district.
(3) District Records

s 20,443,263 S 20,871,496

12,276,068 9,165,000

_s.__!lgzl2l_ _ï_lJtgsAe9_

60.0s% 43.9r%

Average Equalized Valuation of Taxable Property

Debt Limit (4% of Average Equalization Value) (2)

Total Net Debt Applicable to Lirnit (3)

Legal Debt Margin

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2011

s 21,209,348 S 21,399,907

10,335,000 11,220,000

_q__piz1i48_ _q_plz2fgz_

48.73% 52.430/o

Equalized Valuation Basis (1):

2017 $ s09,393,631

20t6 507,070,962

20t5 516,'180,149

tAì _s1é]124!la_

tA/3ì $ st1,081,581

lBf s 20,443,263

tcl 12,276,068

tB-ct _q___!M,re5_

g 2l,6s0,176 $ 22,516,840

I r,940,000 12,665,000

_r_2!t9,ns_ _$_2.ql1I19_

55.15% s6.25%

Exhibit J-l3

s23,401,220 $ 24,015,997
13,370,000 14,030,000

_q_44i1¿?9_ _q___2f8sf2z_

5'7.130/o 59.42%

ï 23,792,314 5 23,184,746

14,670,000 14,99s,000

_ï_2!n;1 4_ _q__qJ-q¿zq_

61.66Vo 64.68%



Population (1)

7,218
7 ))1
r )--L

7,236
7,28r
7,320
7 ??1
4 aã^I,J lZ
7,379
7 ?R5
'7 ?16

Personal
Income (2)

$ 414,179,958
412,290,649
417,091,632
403,070,631
386,810,760
374,878,076
374,047,909
366,714,163
354,369,225
348,966,184

Per Capita
Personal

Income (3)

s 57,382
57,096
56,812
5s ?5'l

52,843
51,136
50,739
49,697
47,995
47,569

Exhibit J-14

Unemployment
Rate (4)

4.10%
4.20%
4.50%
s.00%
6.30%
tI.t%
It.6%
rr.t%
tI.4%
10.8%
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Demosraphic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Year

2018 *
20r7
20r6
20rs
2014
20r3
20t2
2OII
2010
2009

Sources:
(1) Population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development
(2) Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita
(3) Per Capitapersonal income by county-estimated based upon the 2010 Census published
(4) Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development
* Estimates



Philadelphia Sign Company
Kerbeck Cadillac
'Wawa

Gemini Linens
Callahan Chemical
Bridge Machine Company
Curran's kish Ir¡r
Joshua Motor Car Comnanv Inc.

-t02-

BOROUGII OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Principal Non-Governmental Employers

Previous Year and Nine Years Ago
(Unaudited)

Employer Employees

Percentage
2018

260
140
50
a-JI
22
2T

20
18

Rank

of Total
Municipal

Employment

6.48%
3.49%
t.25%
0.92%
0s5%
0s2%
0.s0%
0.45%

1

2
aJ

4
5

6

7
8

Employees

Exhibit J-15

2009

Rank

14.ts%

Percentage
of Total

Municipal
Employment

INFORMATION
NOT AVAILABLE



Function/Prosram

Instruction:
Regular
Special education
Athletics
Adullcontinuing education programs

Support Services:
Student & instruction related services
School administrative services
General and business administrative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Business and other support services

Child Care

Total

Source: District Records
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Full-time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

2018 2017 2016 20ts

59
26

z

24
6

7

t9
z
I

65
26

J

.A

5

6
t4
I
I

6)
¿,1

a
J

t46 145 t45 142 t45 r52 154 134 134 137

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

22
6

6

t4
¿
I

64
27

a
J

20t4 2013 20t2

22
5

5

t4
2

59
27

J

6l
33

J

Exhibit J-l6

zo
6

6

t6
z
1

20tl 2010

64
29

J

25
6

8

15

t
1

69
t9

J

25
7
8

16

1

I

2009

69
t9

a
J

I

69
19

J

10

6
I

l2
t3
I

10

6
I

t2
13

I

l0
6
I

13

l4
I



Fiscal

Year

Ended Resident

June 30, Enrollment

2018 932 $

2017 895

2016 941

20ts 94s

20t4 960

20t3 972

2012 1,017

20Lt 1,019

2010 1,017

2009 1,023

Sources: District Records

Operating Cost Per

Expenditures Pupil
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Operating Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

17,788,387 $

17,279,812

16,601,354

16,013,409

16,013,409

ts,637,963
t4,996,33t
14,488,801

14,889,016

14,609,925

19,086

19,307

17,699

t6,94s
16,681

16,088

14,746

14,219

14,640

14,281

Percentage Teaching

Change Staff

-t.r4%
9.09%
4A5%
r.59%
3.68%
9.tt%
3.71%

-2.88%
2.5t%
-195%

Junior/Senior
Elementary High School

Puoil/Teacher Ratio

86

93

92

91

86

93

rt4
tt4
tr4
t15

l:14.0
l:11.0
1:12.0

1:10.0

1 : 13.0

1:12.0

1:12.Q

1:12.0

l:12.0
l:12.0

1:11.0

1:8.33

1:10.0

1:11.0

l:12.0
1:10.0

1:10.0

1:10.0

l:10.0
1:10.0

Average Daily

Enrollment
(ADE)

Average Daily

Attendance

(ApA)

930

890

936
944
9s6
964
9s0

960

950

976

Exhibit J-17

% Change in

Average Daily
Enrollment

879

842
871

889

902
905

924
904
894

924

Student

Attendance

Percentage

94.52o/o

94.53%
93.78%
94.1r%
94.39%
93.90%
94.27%

94.2s%

94.t7%
94.70%

4.45%
-4.8s%
-0.91o/o

-r.12%
-0.92%
0.23%

t.26%
-1.02%

1.03%

-2.67%



District Buildine

Elementary

Charles Street Elementary (1958)

Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Delaware Avenue Elementary (1956)
Square Feet
Capacity (students)

Enrollment
Senior High School

Junior/Senior High School (1922)
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Number of Schools at June 30, 2018
Elementary School:2
Junior/Senior Hieh School: 1

Other: 0

Source: District Records

-1 0s-

BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
School Building Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

2018

62,994
705
495

11,539
180

2017

62,884
705
495

ll,53g
180

2016

62,884
705
520

ll,53g
180

2015

62,884
705
525

11,539
180

99,248 99,248
765 76s
400 400

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2014 2013

62,884
705
s29

1 1,539
180

99,248
765
421

62,884
705
481

I 1,539
180

16

99,248
765
449

99,248
765
420

2012

Exhibit J-18

20tt

62,884
705
470

11,539
180

35

99,248
765
512

62,884
70s
493

11,539
180

27

99,248
765
433

99,248
765
431

2010 2009

62,994
705
467

I 1,539
180

43

99,248
765
534

62,884
705
467

1 1,539
180

J)

99,248
76s
517



School Facilities*

Charles Street School

Delaware Avenue School

Junior/Senior High School

Total School Facilities

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUTRED MATNTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACTLTTTES (11-000-261-XXX)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.

t06-

BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Required Maintenance

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

* School Facilities as defined under EFCFA. (N.J.A.C. 6A:26-1.2 and N.J.A.C. 6A:264-1.3)

Source: District Records

2018

s 130,952

25,462

207,343

_s 3$r:J_ _q_jø¡g_ __q__334,538_ _S 30eA23_ _$_312,363_ _q_Iq,235_ JJ22A60_ _$-1's2u!g_ _q_4ër _q_K2{45

2017

s 132,314

25,728
209,498

2016

$ 115,208

22,402

182,413

20t5

s 1?? ?s?

18,466

1 83,820

)n14 )Ol1

s trt,027 s 1,t2,4sr
21,589 21,865

176,807 178,047

2012

s 7r,36s
13,816

t12,994

Exhibit J-19

2011

$ 69,286
't? 4"t')

t09,702

2010

s 6s4,6s6
229,t88

r,015,396

2009

$ 87,631

64,140
99,782



School Package Policy (1)
Boiler and Machinery
General and Automobile Liability
Pollution Liability
School Excess Liability
Blanket Dishonesty Bond
Workers' Compansation

Student Accident Liability (1)

-t07-

BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Insurance Schedule

June 30. 2018
(Unaudited)

Exhibit J-20

Coverase Deductible
4

$ 100,000,000 $ 2,500
5,000,000
1,000,000

10,000,000
500,000

Statutory

1,000,000

5,000
10,000

Surety Bonds (2)
Treasurer 250,000
Board Secretary 175,000

(1) School Alliance ksurance Fund
(2) National Union Fire ksurance Company of Pittsburgt¡ PA

Source: District Records
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NTGHTLTNGER, COLAVTTA & VOLPA
A Professionøl Assocíation

Ce rtíf íe d P u b líc Acc o u nto nts
991 S. Black Horse Pike

P.O. Box 799
Williamstown, NJ 08094

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINA¡ICIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AIIDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AT]DITING STA¡IDARDS

INDEPEI\DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Palmyra Borough School District
County of Burlington, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-

type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the of Education of the Palmyra
Borough School District, in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as of and for the year ended June 30,

2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the of Education of the
Palmyra Borough School District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January
3r,20T9.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Palmyra Borough Board of
Education's internal control over fi.nancial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Palmyra Borough Board of Education's internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Palmyra Borough Board
of Education's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealcness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility thata material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

EXHIBIT K-l

(8s6) 629-3111
Fax (856) 728-2245
www,colavita.net



_109_

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identifu all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identiff any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Palmyra Borough Board of Education's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance, or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey and is described in the accompanying
schedule of flrndings and questioned costs, labeled finding 2018-1.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Palmyra Borough Board of
Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other state and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Respectfully submitted,

INGER, COLAy_ITA & voLPA, PA

Liõensed Public School Accountant
No.915

January 3T,2019

NI
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NIGHTLINGER. COLAVITA & VOLPA
A Profe ssíonøl Asso ciøtíon

CertifÍed P u blic Accou ntø nts
991 S. Black Horse Pike

P.O. Box 799
Williamstown, NJ 08094

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE F'OR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY

T]NIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

INDEPENDENT AI.IDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Mernbers of the Board of Education
Palmyra Borough School District
County of Burlington, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Maior Federal and State Program

We have audited the Board of Education of the Palmyra Borough School District, in the County of Burlington, State
of New Jersey, compliance with the types of compliance requirements described inthe OMB Compliance Supplement
and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the Palmyra Borough School District's major federal and state programs for the f,rscal year ended June 30, 2018. The
Palmyra Borough Board of Education's major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Mana gement's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal and state statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditorrs Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Palmyra Borough Board of Education's
major federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance) and as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, Uniþrm
Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08. Those standards, Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08, require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Palmyra Borough Board of
Education's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state

program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Palmyra Borough Board of Education's compliance.

EXHIBIT K-2
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Opinion on Each Maior Program

In our opinion, the Board of Education of the Palmyra Borough School District, in the County of Burlington, State of
New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliaúce

Management of the Palmyra Borough School District's Board of Education is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Palmyra Borough Board of Education's internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state
progfam to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance for each major federal or state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Treasury 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Palmyra Borough School District Board of Education's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material
weal¡ness in internal control over compliance ís a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance; such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of def,rciencies, in intemal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the f,rrst paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identif,z all def,rciencies in internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above or any instance of deficiency in internal
control over compliance that we have to report to the Board of Education in a separate report entitled Audìtors'
Mønøgement Report on Admínistratìve Findings-FínanciøL, Complíønce and Performance dated January 3I,2019.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. The purpose of this report on internal control
over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of
that testing based on the requirements of Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Palmyra Borough
Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education, other state awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfu lly submitted,

Licensed Public School Accountant
No.915

Januarv 31.2019

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLP
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Pass-throueh

Crantor/P

General Fund:

U.S. Deparhnent of Education:
Passed-through the State Deparnnent of Education:

Medicaid Administrative Claiming Aid 93.778
Medical Assistance Progmm (SEMI) 93.'178

Total Geneml Fund

Special Revenue Fund:

U.S. Depafiment of Education:

Passed-through State Deparhnent of Education:
E.S,E.A.:

Title I, PartA 84.010

Title I, Part A 84.010

Federal

CFDA

Number

Federal Pass-Tluough Program or
FAIN Entity ldentiô'ing Award

Number Number Anìount

Total Title I, Parr A

TitIC II, PArt A
Titte II, Part A

Totâl Title II, Part A

-tt2-

BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Expenditr¡res of Federal Awards - Sclredule A

I.D.E.A. Part B:
Basic 84.027

Pre-School 84.173

Total l.D.E.A. Part B Special Education Cluster

Total Special Revenue Fund

Ent€rprise Fund:

U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed-tluough State Department of Agriculture:

Non-Cash Assistance (Food Distribution):

I 8O5NJ5MAP
ISO5NJ5MAP

Unavailable

Unavailable

Carry-over /
Gmnt Period Balance (\Yalkover)

Frorn To June 30,2017 Amount

84.367

84.367

s0104170030 ESEA3920l8

s0104160030 ESEA3920l7

s3674170029 ESEA3920l8

s367Ar60029 ESEA3920l7

H027A170100 rDEA3920l8
Hl73Al70Í4 rDEA3920r8

Food Distribution Program

Food Distribution Progmm

Child Nut¡ition Cluster:

Cash Assistance:

National School Breakfast Program

National School Brealdast Program

National School Lunch Program

National School Lunch Program

Total Enterprise Fund

Total Federal Financial Assistance

$ 4,705

2t,904
07-01-t7
07-0t-t7

06-30-18
06-30-18

(A) SeeNotestotheSchedulesofExpendituresofFedemlAwardsandStateFinancialAssistance
TlreaccornpanyingNotestoFinancialState¡nentsandNotestoSchedulesofExpendituresofFederalAwardsandStateFinancialAssistanceaIeanintealp

230,09 I
232.2t8

10.5ó5

10.565

t0.5s3

10.553

10.5s5

10.555
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State Grmtor/
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Slate Department of Education;
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BOROUGH OF P.ALITIYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule ofExpenditures ofState Financial Assistance - Schedule B
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF AWARDS

AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30.2018

EXHIBIT K.5

NOTE 1: GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include federal
and state award activity of the Board of Education of the Borough of Palmyra School District. The Board of
Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received
directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed
through other government agencies are included on the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance

NOTE 2: BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented on
the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 2 to the
Board's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements 2 CFR 200- Uníform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, and New Jersey OMB 15-08. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The District has
elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue
fund to demonstrate fìnance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agteement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the
subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrualbasis with the exception
of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current budget year,
which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A., 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes payments are not recognized until
the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the one or more June state aid paynrents
in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant
accounting budgetary basis, which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the one or more state
aid June payrnents in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A., 18A:22-44.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $13,552 for the general fund.
See Exhibit C-3 (the Notes to Required Supplementary lnformation) for a reconciliation of the budgetary
basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Awards and
financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as

presented on the following page:
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EXHIBIT K-5

BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT.
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF AWARDS

AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30.2019

Federal State Total

General Fund

Special Revenue Fund

Debt Service Fund

Food Service Fund

s 26,609 s 6,999,309 $ 7,o25,9L8
542,150 542,t50

176,428 176,428

234,077 4,293 238,370

TotalAwards&FinancialAssistance 5 802,836 $ 7,130,030 5 7,982,866

NOTE 4: RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports.

NOTE 5: FEDERAL AND STATE LOANS OUTSTANDING

Borough of Palmyra School District had no outstanding loans at June 30, 2018.

NOTE 6: OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions
represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of the District for the year ended June 30, 2018. TPAF
Social Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share of social
security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2018.

NOTE 7: SCIIOOL\MIDE PROGRAM FUNDS

As the District's Federal Programs are on atargeted student group basis, there are no schoolwide programs in
the District.

NOTE 8: MAJOR PROGRAMS

Major programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results Section of the Schedule of Findings and

Questioned Cost.
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCIIOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

EXHIBIT K-6

lnternal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant def,rciencies identified?

Noncompliance material to basic
financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200 section
.516(a)?

yes X no
none

yes X reported

X yes

Unmodified

no

yes X no
none

Yes X reported

ves X no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) FAIN Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.010 SO1OAl7OO3O TITLE I

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018
(continued)

Section I - Summary of Auditorrs Results (continued)

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Internal control over major programs:

X yes

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses?

EXHIBIT K-6

yes Xno

none
yes X reported

no

T¡pe of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that arc required to
be reported in accordance with NJOMB
Circular Letter 15-08 ves X no

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program

78-495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
18-495-034-5120-089 Special Education Categorical Aid
18-495-034-5120-084 Security Aid
18-495-034-5120-098 PARCC Readiness Aid
18-495-034-5120-097 Per Pupil Growth Aid
18-495-034-5T20-096 Under Adequacy Aid
18-495-034-5120-085 Adjustment Aid
18-495-034-51,20-10I Professional Learnins CommunitvAid
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018
(continued)

EXHIBIT K-7

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weakness, fraud, noncompliance with provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial statements for which
Government Auditing Standards requires reporting and with audit requirements as prescribed by the Office
of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey that requires reporting in the Uniform
Guidance, New Jersey OMB Treasury Circular 15-08 audit.

Findine: 2018-1

Criteria or specific requirement:

The New Jersey Department of Agriculture requires a School Food Authority to maintain a nonprofit School
Food Service. The nonprofit status of the School Food Service is determined by evaluating net cash
resources, which may not exceed three months average expenditures.

Condition:

Net cash resources in the Food Service Fund exceeded three months average expenditures.

Context:

Utilizing the USDA net cash resource calculation form, it was determined the District's net cash resources
exceeded three months average expenditures by $48,394, as of June 30,2018.

Effect:

Violation of New Jersey Department of Agriculture requirements.

Cause:

Inadvertent oversight

Recommendation:

The Board should implement a corrective action plan to effectively reduce the net cash resources on hand in
the Food Service Fund through capital expenditure or otherwise.

Managementrs response:

Management is aware of the necessary procedures to be updated and followed.
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EXHIBIT K.7

BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(continued)

Section III - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies audit findings required to be reported by 2 CFR 200 section .516 of the Untþrm
Administrative Requirements, Cost principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards andNJOMB
Circular Letter 15-08, as applicable.

FEDERAL AWARDS - N/A

Finding:
Information on the federal proqram:
Criteria or specifTc requirement:
Condition:
Ouestioned Costs:
Context:
Effect:
Cause:
Recommendation:
Views of responsible offïcials and planned corrective actions:

STATE A\ryARDS - N/A

Findine:
Information on the state program:
Criteria or specifïc requirement:
Condition:
Questioned Costs:
Context:
Effect:
Cause:
Recommendation:
Managementrs response:
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BOROUGH OF PALMYRA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXHIBIT K-8

This section identifies the status of prior - year findings related to the basic financial statements and Federal
and State awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing
Standards, US OMB Uniftrm Admínistrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards section.5l1(a)(b) and New Jersey OMB's Treasury Circular 04-04 andlor 15-08, as

applicable.

STATUS OF PRIOR - YEAR FINDINGS

Findine - 2017-01

Condition - The Board Secretary's report was not filed timely with the County Superintendent.

Current Status - Resolved


